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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Global International
Credit Group Limited (the “Company” together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), I am delighted to present the annual report of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (“FY2021").

Having experienced an unprecedented challenging year of 2020 due to
the outbreak of coronavirus (“COVID-19"), the Group moved into 2021 with
an expectation of a slow recovery of the general economy and the Group’s
business performance. Although the economy of Hong Kong was still
affected by the on-going COVID-19 pandemic, the economy has gradually
recovered from a low base in 2021. The gross domestic product of Hong
Kong grew by 6.4% but remained 2% below the pre-recession level. During
the year of review, the Group cautiously expanded its loan business with
new loan transaction improved slightly from an extremely low level in
2020. Nevertheless, loan demand remained subdued under pandemic
situation as the continuous imposition of travel restrictions constrained a
full recovery of business and investment activities.

Starting from a low base in the beginning of 2021, despite the Group’s
gross loans receivable and repossessed assets increased by 5.3% from
HKS$745.3 million as at 31 December 2020 to HK$784.6 million as at 31
December 2021, the Group recorded a decline in revenue of HK$17.3
million or 16.8% to HK$86.0 million for FY2021 as compared to HK$103.3
million in the prior year and inevitably recorded a decline in profit and total
comprehensive income of HK$11.7 million or 18.2% to HK$52.5 million as
compared to HK$64.2 million in the prior year.

Moving to 2022, the hope of a continued recovery of the local economy
is hindered by a crushing wave of Omicron as economic activities are
once again being severally disrupted. The pace of economy recovery will
then largely depend on how such rampant Omicron variant be contained
and the Government’s pandemic policy. Furthermore, the Russia-Ukraine
conflict and inflationary pressure pose additional uncertainties to the
global economy. Amid such challenges and uncertainties, the Group will
continue to conduct its loan business cautiously. With years of effort in
strengthening our risk management policy, we believe our Group is well
positioned in facing the upcoming challenges and be ready to capture
growth opportunities should they arise.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FERSE(E)

I'would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to all the senior
management and staff of the Group for their commitment and
contributions in upholding our service quality. | remain deeply grateful to
my fellow Board members for their invaluable advice and contributions
to the Group's direction of development and corporate governance. | also
wish to offer sincere thanks to our customers, shareholders and business
partners for their continuing loyalty and trust. We will continue with
our endeavor to pursue growth of our business and create value for our
shareholders.

To reward and thank our shareholders for their support, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK5.3 cents per share.

Wang Yao
Chairman of the Board

29 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

3

BUSINESS REVIEW AND INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the money lending business focusing
primarily on providing short-term and long-term property mortgage loans
in Hong Kong under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (“FY2021"), with the
gradual easing of COVID-19, the economy of Hong Kong showed steady
recovery from a deep recession in the previous 2 years with the gross
domestic product for the year grown by 6.4% and unemployment rate
declined from the peak of 7.2% in February 2021 to 3.9% in the last quarter
of 2021. The property market in Hong Kong showed signs of rebound
with an increasing number of property transactions and an increase of the
residential property price index in December 2021 by 3.0% as compared to
the corresponding figure in December 2020.

Although there was a general recovery of the economy, the overall
economic activity in Hong Kong remained below the pre-recession level
given the inbound tourism remained frozen and the investor sentiment
remained weak. Loan demand revived from low level in previous year
amid gradual recovery with HK$327.7 million new loans granted by the
Group in FY2021 as compared to HK$203.6 million in the financial year
ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020"). The Group's gross loans receivable
and repossessed assets increased slightly by HK$39.3 million to HK$784.6
million as at 31 December 2021 as compared to HK$745.3 million as at
31 December 2020. Although the Group'’s gross loans receivable slightly
increased in FY2021, the Group's interest income decreased by 16.7%
or HK$17.3 million to HK$86.0 million for FY2021 due to the decrease in
average gross loans receivable for FY2021 as compared to FY2020.
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With the pandemic persists and the overall economic environment
remained challenging, the Group continued to conduct its mortgage loan
business with stringent credit control to minimise associated credit risks.
The Group strived to uphold the quality of its loan portfolio with the overall
weighted average loan-to-value ratio as at 31 December 2021 managed at
53.7%.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For FY2021, the Group's interest income from its money lending business
was HK$86.0 million, representing a decrease of HK$17.3 million or 16.7%
from interest income of HK$103.3 million for FY2020. The decrease was
primarily due to the decrease in average month-end balance of loans
receivable during the year. The average month-end balance of aggregate
loans receivable decreased by HK$92.8 million or 11.0% from HK$841.4
million for FY2020 to HK$748.6 million for FY2021.

Other income

Other income decreased by HK$1,327,000 from HK$1,331,000 in FY2020
to HKS$4,000 in FY2021. The decrease is mainly due to the absence of
the wage subsidies provided by the Hong Kong Government under the
Employment Support Scheme in FY2021.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses incurred by the Group mainly comprised
employee benefit expenses, advertising and marketing expenses, legal
and professional fees, auditor’s remuneration, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, depreciation of right-of-use assets and other
administrative expenses. These expenses, which constitute 26.7% and
23.7% of the total revenue for FY2021 and FY2020, respectively, decreased
from HK$24.4 million in FY2020 to HK$23.0 million in FY2021, representing
a decrease of HKS 1.4 million or 5.7%.

Employee benefit expenses decreased by HK$0.6 million or 5.3% from
HKS$11.3 million in FY2020 to HK$10.7 million in FY2021.

Advertising and marketing expenses decreased by HK$0.6 million or 12.5%
from HK$4.8 million in FY2020 to HKS$4.2 million in FY2021. The decrease
in advertising and marketing expenses in FY2021 was mainly due to fewer
resources being devoted to television advertising.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Excluding employee benefit expenses and advertising and marketing
expenses mentioned above, administrative expenses decreased by HK$0.2
million or 2.4% from HK$8.3 million in FY2020 to HKS$8.1 million in FY2021.
These expenses were comprised of mainly legal and professional fees of
HKS$1.5 million (FY2020: HKS].O million); auditor’'s remuneration of HK$0.8
million (FY2020: HK$1.1 million); depreciation of property, plant and
equipment of HK$0.3 million (FY2020: HK$0.4 million); depreciation of
right-of-use assets of HK$3.7 million (FY2020: HK$4.0 million); and other
administrative expenses of HK$1.8 million (FY2020: HKS$1.7 million).

Reversal of impairment losses - net

The Group recognised a reversal of provision for impairment losses on
loans receivable and interest receivables of HK$0.4 million in FY2021
(FY2020: HKS$ 1.5 million) netting off with a provision for repossessed assets
of HKS$0.1 million (FY2020: Nil).

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by HK$4.7 million or 92.2% from HKS$5.1 million
in FY2020 to HKS$0.4 million in FY2021 due to a decrease in average
borrowings during the year.

Net interest margin

Net interest margin during the year refers to the interest income in respect
of the Group's mortgage loans and personal loans less finance costs
(excluding interest expenses on lease liabilities) divided by the average of
month-end gross loans receivable balances of the corresponding loans
during the year.

Net interest margin decreased from 11.7% for FY2020 to 11.5% for FY2021.
Income tax expenses

The Group's effective tax rate increased slightly from 16.2% for FY2020 to
16.5% for FY2021.
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Profit and total comprehensive income

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit and total comprehensive
income for FY2021 was HKS$52.5 million, representing a decrease of
HK$11.7 million or 18.2% from profit and total comprehensive income of
HKS$64.2 million for FY2020.

OUTLOOK

While there was a hope that Hong Kong will continue its path to
economy recovery in 2022, the new wave of epidemic has disrupted
the pace of economy recovery. The escalating outbreak of the Omicron
variant has caused a heavy blow to the local economies. It is expected
that the economy of Hong Kong will be severely affected in the first
half of 2022. The recovery of the economy will then largely depend
on the development of the pandemic situation and the Government'’s
pandemic strategies in the second half of 2022.

Besides the local pandemic threat, the Russia-Ukraine conflict and the
inflationary pressure on the United States of America bring further
uncertainties on the global economy. With a view of an increasing threat of
a rise of loan defaults and delinquent payments and a downward pressure
on property price due to the worsening economic environment, the Group
will continue to take active measures to review the repayment record of
the customers and conduct comprehensive assessments on the related
collaterals to manage the credit risk.

Looking ahead, the Group will remain cautious and sensibly uphold
its risk management policies and credit review process to control the
quality of the Group's loan portfolio. The Group will closely monitor the
development of the property market to implement necessary timely
measures in order to strike a balance between risk and return.

Although the Group does not have any detailed plans for material
investments, capital assets or launching new products in a large scale
in the coming year, it will continue to improve its existing products and
services to enhance customer experience.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

During FY2021, the Group's operational and capital requirements were
financed principally through retained earnings and loans from a bank.

Based on the Group's current and anticipated levels of operations, the
Group's future operations and capital requirements will be mainly financed
through loans from banks and other independent third party licensed
money lenders, retained earnings and share capital. There were no
significant commitments for capital expenditure as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits
amounted to HK$101.3 million, which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, representing a decrease of HK$39.0 million as compared to
the position as at 31 December 2020. The decrease was mainly attributable
to an increase in gross loans receivable as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, interest-bearing bank loans amounted to HK$35.9
million, which were all denominated in Hong Kong dollars, representing
a decrease of HK$12.8 million as compared to the position as at 31
December 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, all outstanding interest-bearing bank loans
were repayable in one year and bore interest at variable rates. The bank
loans were secured by (i) a floating charge on certain loans receivable of a
subsidiary of the Company; (i) a floating charge on certain bank accounts
of a subsidiary of the Company; and (iii) a corporate guarantee executed by
the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the Group's borrowing
facilities were subject to any covenants relating to financial ratio
requirements or any material covenants that restrict the Group from
undertaking additional debt or equity financing. As at 31 December 2021,
the unutilised facility available to the Group for drawdown amounted to
HKS14.1 million (2020: HK$301.3 million).
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Current ratio
The Group's current ratio increased from 9.4 times as at 31 December 2020
to 9.5 times as at 31 December 2021.

Gearing ratio

The Group's gearing ratio was calculated by dividing net debts (being the
total borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposit) by total equity. The Group was in a net cash position as at
31 December 2021 and 2020.

Return on total assets and return on equity
The return on total assets decreased from 7.1% as at 31 December 2020 to
5.8% as at 31 December 2021. The return on equity decreased from 7.6% as
at 31 December 2020 to 6.1% as at 31 December 2021.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any significant investments held, material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associated companies and joint
ventures during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s operations, financial conditions, operational results and
growth prospects are affected by a number of risks and uncertainties as
outlined below. These factors are not exhaustive and there may be other
risks in addition to those shown below which are not known to the Group
or which may not be material now but could become material in the
future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Financial risk

Financial risk factors include cash flow and fair value interest rate risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. As a licensed money lender in Hong Kong providing
mainly mortgage loan financings to corporations and private individuals
which are secured against real estate assets in Hong Kong, credit risk is
regarded as the prime risk of the Group.

The Group generates revenue from interest received from the provision
of loans to corporate and private individual customers. The Group’s
principal loan products are (i) first mortgage loans, which are secured by
the first mortgage on the borrowers’ real estates; and (ii) subordinated
mortgage loans, which are secured by mortgages subordinated to the
first mortgages charged on the borrowers’ pledged properties. The Group
only offers mortgage loan financings which are secured against real estate
assets located in Hong Kong which include residential, commercial and
industrial real estate assets. Unsecured loans accounted for less than 1% of
the Group's total loan portfolio as at 31 December 2021.

The Group has a credit policy in place and the exposures to credit risk are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Approval for loan applications, together
with the loan amount and corresponding interest rate, are determined
based on a number of factors including, amongst others, the credit history
and profile of the applicant, the property type, profile and valuation of the
proposed property to be mortgaged and the prevailing market conditions.
In the majority of the cases, the Group grants loan with a loan-to-value
ratio of no more than 70%. As at 31 December 2021, the overall weighted
average loan-to-value ratio of the Group’s loan portfolio is managed at
53.7%.
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EEEWE DA (&)

The Group also establishes standard procedures and the credit department
is responsible for on ongoing monitoring of loan recoverability, which
include the repayment status and the market value of the underlying
collateral, and loan collection.

The Group has a wide customer base, with outstanding loan size by
customer ranging from approximately HK$50,000 to HKS $80,000,000
as at 31 December 2021. The largest customer of the Group accounted
for approximately 7.7% of the Group's revenue for the year ended 31
December 2021. Further terms of the loans granted to this largest
customer are detailed on pages 17 to 18 to this annual report.

Further information on the internal control and risk management
measures in relation to credit risk and other aforesaid financial risk factors
of the Group are elaborated in Note 3.1 “Financial risk factors” to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report

Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, human and system errors or from external
events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with
every function at departmental levels. Key functions in the Group are
guided by their standard operating procedures, limits of authority and
reporting framework. Management will identify and assess key operational
exposures regularly so that appropriate risk response can be taken.

Market risk

Performance of the Group’s business will be affected by various market
factors in Hong Kong, including but not limited to economic conditions
and the overall property market conditions in Hong Kong. A downturn in
the economy and/or property market in Hong Kong may result not only
in a decline in the number of real estate transactions, which may limit the
growth of the Group’s mortgage loan portfolio, but also a decline in the
value of the underlying properties in respect of the Group’s mortgage
loans, which may increase the risk of impairment of the Group’s mortgage
loan portfolio. The Group has implemented polices to carry out continuous
monitoring of the property market and the collateral value of the
underlying mortgage loan portfolio so that appropriate risk response can
be taken.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Reputational risk

The Group maintains a strong market position in the money lending
business market in Hong Kong. One of the keys to its success is its
reputation and recognition of the brand “GICL". Maintaining and
promoting brand and reputation will depend on the Group’s marketing
efforts and service quality. If existing or potential customers lose
confidence in “GICL", or in the industry in general, because of negative
publicity, the Group's performance may be negatively impacted. To
safeguard and manage the brand, the Group strives to uphold its brand
value, corporate image, and maintain high business ethics.

Risk management

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk management
procedures to identify and control various types of risk within the
organisation and the external environment with active management
participation and effective internal control procedures in the best interest
of the Group and its shareholders. Details of its risk management system
are elaborated on pages 37 to 39 under section “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group maintains strong and close relationships with its employees
and customers and has enhanced cooperation with its business partners
SO as to ensure sustainable development.

The Group regards employees as one of the most valuable assets of the
Group and regards the personal development of its employees as highly
important. The Group (i) regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard; (ii) provides a safe working environment to its employees; and
(iii) provides continuous training support to its employees in order to drive
their personal development and improve their knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.

The Group maintains a close relationship with its customers to fulfill
their immediate and long-term financing needs. The Group has ongoing
communication with customers through various channels, such as the
Group's website, telephone, direct mail, marketing materials and social
media.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 20 full-time employees
(2020: 22). The total employee benefit expenses (including directors’
emoluments) of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 were HK$10.7 million and HK$11.3 million, respectively. The
remuneration of its employees included salaries, overtime allowances,
commissions and year end discretionary bonuses. The Group remunerates
its employees mainly based on current market trends, individual
performance and experience and conducts performance appraisals on an
annual basis.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The business activities of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Directors did not consider the Group was exposed to any
significant foreign exchange risks during the financial year ended 31
December 2021. As the impact from foreign exchange exposure was
minimal, the Directors were of the view that no hedging against foreign
currency exposure was necessary. In view of the operational needs, the
Group will continue to monitor the foreign currency exposure from time to
time and take necessary actions to minimise the exchange related risks.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, certain properties mortgaged to a subsidiary
of the Group by its customers were pledged to a licensed money lender
to secure a loan facility granted to the Group. These properties, with a
combined market value of HK$238.9 million, were mortgaged to the Group
for securing loans receivable of HK$88.9 million. Such loan facility was
expired on 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, certain loans receivable and bank accounts of
a subsidiary of the Group with carrying value of HK$94.8 million (2020:
HK$115.7 million) and HK$19.0 million (2020: HK$7.4 million), respectively,
were charged to a bank to secure a loan facility granted to the Group.
Those loan facilities granted to the Group were for the expansion of the
Group’s mortgage business.

16

12 & I 5

RZZE-Z—F+-_A=+—8  xEEEHF20
HZ2BEE(ZT-ZTF : 2F) - AEEFHZE
TE I FRIEEFF+A=+—HILF
ENEERNAYBH(BREFHFH) SR A
10,700,000 7T F2.11,300,00078 7T ° 1€ B ¥ EH &
BEIE - NIEERL - A RFEEHBIBIEL -
AEBETZREBEREMISBE - GARBARE

AR BEMEFH - WEFETERTZ -
SMEE LB

AEBHEBEBAETTE - EFAR - &
E-T-Ft+A=t—HLEMHRFE K
SEY BAZERERINERR - BRIMNER
RRFEGN  EFA/BAR/RINERRIEH
o ENEERE  AEEBEETRES

SMERR - I FREL BT AR IK B S AR R,
B -
HREE

RIBE-—FR-ZF-_FF+-_A=+—8
NEFETEBARAREE -

EERR

%_?_2¢+ A=+—H EFE®RTA

—HNBARZETYEEERT— %
%%MEA'M%ﬁK%Eﬁﬁm*%E%@
& - ZEWEMES /2389000008 7T © T)
48 T 7K £2 B LA /488,900,000 78 JT HY B UL E X
EER - FHREFBRER-_ZE-_—F+=A
=+—H3|H-

RZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—8 ' xEE—H
W E A FIBREESD 594,800,000 (2 - F
& 1 115,700,000/ 7T ) }.19,000,000/8 7t (ZF =
T : 7,400,000 70 ) A T RKERMIRITER
FEEETF BT UWERAEEER —E
BEXRE - AEEERNZEENRE B IERE
RAEBEMNIRIBER ©



Management

ADVANCE TO AN ENTITY

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 5 February
2021 (the "Announcement”), Global International Credit Limited (“GIC"),
being an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as lender,
entered into a loan agreement (“Loan Agreement A”) with Mr. Wong Chee
Yu (the “Borrower”), as borrower, on 5 February 2021, pursuant to which,
GIC agreed to grant a mortgage loan in an amount of HK$70 million to
the Borrower for a term of 24 months. On 24 November 2021, GIC and the
Borrower entered into a loan agreement (“Loan Agreement B”), pursuant to
which, GIC agreed to grant a mortgage loan in an amount of HK$10 million
to the Borrower for a term of 24 months. Set out below are the principal
terms of Loan Agreement A and Loan Agreement B (collectively, the “Loan
Agreements”) which are outstanding as at 31 December 2021:

Loan Agreement A

BREREESEEERLAT 2021 FR

Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Loan Agreement B

Ml EA B

Date of Agreement 5 February 2021 24 November 2021

[GE 5k —Z_-%¥_RAA —E--f+—-A-t@mA

Borrower Mr. Wong Chee Yu Mr. Wong Chee Yu

A BT PELE BETREL

ann amount HK$70,000,000 HK$10,000,000

B 70,000,000 7T 10,000,000/ 7T

Interest rate 9% per annum 8% per annum

ME FR9E FR8E

Term 24 months 24 months

R A48 A 2148 A

Repayment Borrower shall repay the interests in 24 monthly Borrower shall repay the interests in 24 monthly

BR installments and the principal amount at loan installments and the principal amount at loan
maturity maturity

ERARDUR(BRR—EA)EEEFHNER ERARL 1B (BHA—ER)ERERNER

REFRIBMAEESS

RERHAEERS

Underlying property as collateral™ Afirst legal charge/mortgage in respect of a residential property and a car parking space located in Mid-

FERRRNBREED Levels Central

BRNATFLN—BEEENER—AREEEUNE EERE/ K8

Approximate value of the underlying HK$122,000,000 as conducted on 4 January 2021 HK$130,000,000 as conducted on 1 November 2021

property as collateral® 122,000,000 TR =T = —F— AMB#ET)
YRR me B ERORE?

Approximate aggregate loan-to-value ~ 57.4%

ratio®

B ERYRELX

Outstanding loan amount as at 31 HK$70,000,000
December 2021

WZZEZ—F+=A=+—H 70,000,000/ 7T

AEEENEHE

130,000,000 TR = E = —F+— A —H#ET)

61.5%

HK$10,000,000

10,000,000 7T
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(1) Loan Agreement A and Loan Agreement B are secured by the same property.
(2)  The valuations were conducted by independent third party valuers.

(3)  The loan-to-value ratios were calculated based on the valuation of the underlying
property as collateral secured for the total outstanding loans.

The advances under the Loan Agreements were made based on the
Group's credit assessments on (i) the financial strength and repayment
ability of the Borrower; and (ii) the underlying properties as collaterals
provided by the Borrower, which are at a prime site in Hong Kong. After
taking into account the factors as disclosed above in assessing the risks of
the relevant advances, the Group considers that the risks involved in the
advance to the Borrower are acceptable to the Group. For further details,
please refer to the Announcement, the circular of the Company dated 1
March 2021 and the announcement of the Company dated 5 January 2022.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wang Yao (E ), aged 38, is the Chairman and Chief Executive of
the Company and was appointed as Director on 20 January 2014 and
designated as an executive Director on 24 July 2014. Ms. Wang is a co-
founder of the Group and is responsible for the overall management of the
money lending business as well as strategic planning and development
of the Group. In particular, she is responsible for developing the Group’s
overall business model and product portfolio as well as formulating its
advertising and marketing strategy. Ms. Wang also serves as director to a
number of subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Wang graduated from Macquarie
University in Australia with a double bachelor’s degree in applied finance
and commerce accounting in November 2006 and a master of applied
finance, also from Macquarie University, in July 2007. Ms. Wang is the
daughter of Ms. Jin. Ms. Wang is also a director of Blossom Spring Global
Limited, a company which has an interest in the shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Ms. Jin Xiaoqin (£B ), aged 65, was appointed as Director on 9 April
2014 and designated as an executive Director on 24 July 2014. Ms. Jin is a
co-founder of the Group and an experienced property investor. Between
July 2006 and July 2008 she was the director of a privately held company
in Hong Kong which, through its subsidiaries, was engaged in motorcycle
manufacturing and trading business in the PRC. She is responsible for
the overall management of the Group's business and operations and
participating in monitoring of the Group'’s treasury functions. Ms. Jin is the
mother of Ms. Wang.

Ms. Yip Lee Ying (EF] &), aged 38, was appointed as an executive
Director on 28 August 2020. Ms. Yip joined the Group in February 2016
as chief financial officer and has also been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Yip is principally responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial management, internal control, company secretarial
and corporate finance matters. Ms. Yip has over 10 years of experience in
professional accounting and financial advisory services. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. Yip worked at Deloitte Hong Kong from February 2007 to
January 2016 and her last position held was Associate Director at Deloitte
Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited. Ms. Yip became a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in September 2010. She
holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting and Finance and a
Master of Commerce degree in Funds Management from the University of
New South Wales.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen (REX), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 22 November 2014.
She has about 30 years of experience in professional accounting and
corporate finance in Hong Kong, the PRC, the United States and Europe.
Dr. Ng is a practicing certified public accountant in Hong Kong, a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom, and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. She is currently a director of Cosmos CPA Limited and Redwood
Asset Management Limited, a company licensed with the Securities and
Futures Commission in Hong Kong. She received her Doctor of Business
Administration Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Juris
Doctor Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Master of Laws
Degree in Corporate and Financial Laws from The University of Hong Kong,
Master of Business Administration Degree from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong, Master of Professional Accounting Degree from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and Master of Science in Global Finance
from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and Leonard
N. Stern School of Business of New York University. Dr. Ng is currently
an independent non-executive director of eSun Holdings Limited (stock
code: 571) and Lion Rock Group Limited (stock code: 1127), all being listed
companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis (EfEf®), aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 22 November 2014.
Mr. Tang was called to the Bar of Hong Kong in the High Court of Hong
Kong in December 2001 and since then has been a practising barrister
and a member of the Hong Kong Bar Association. Mr. Tang has been
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators since 2019
and an arbitrator of the Guangzhou Arbitration Commission since 2020.
Mr. Tang graduated from the University of Toronto in June 1998 with a
bachelor of applied science major in computer engineering. He obtained
the postgraduate diploma in English and Hong Kong law from Manchester
Metropolitan University in July 2000 and the postgraduate certificate in
laws from The University of Hong Kong in June 2001. Mr. Tang was also
an independent non-executive director of Elegance Optical International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 907), being a listed company in Hong Kong,
from 15 July 2019 to 31 December 2019. In 2019, Mr. Tang was appointed
as a deputy magistrate in Hong Kong at the West Kowloon Magistrates’
Courts. In 2020, Mr. Tang was appointed as a deputy magistrate in Hong
Kong at the Kowloon City Magistrates’ Courts
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick (X#¥), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 January 2016.
Mr. Man is currently the managing director of the investment banking
department of Guosen Securities (HK) Capital Co., Ltd.. Mr. Man has over
10 years of experience in the corporate finance field. Mr. Man obtained a
Bachelor's Degree of Business Administration from Simon Fraser University,
Canada in October 1993. He has been an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2000 and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since
September 2003.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ng Yiu Lun ({E#81®), aged 47, joined the Group in February 2009
and has been serving as the senior credit manager of the Group. Mr. Ng
has over 10 years of experience in money lending business and is mainly
responsible for managing the Group’s business operation with a focus on
credit and risk management functions. Mr. Ng was an executive Director of
the Company from 30 July 2018 to 27 August 2020.

Ms. Chan Mei Chun (BR3E¥), aged 43, joined the Group in February
2009 as senior relationship manager and is responsible for management of
customer relationships.
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Relevant Period").
The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards
of corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements of its
business and Shareholders to enable them to evaluate how the principles
of corporate governance have been applied. The corporate governance
principles of the Company emphasise a high quality Board, sound internal
controls, and transparency and accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company has adopted and complied with the relevant code
provisions as of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. During the Relevant Period, the Company has
complied with the Code (the “Code”) applicable as at 31 December 2021
except for the following deviations:

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code, the role of chairman and
the chief executive should be segregated and should not be performed
by the same individual. However, the Company does not have a separate
chairman and chief executive and Ms. Wang Yao currently performs these
two roles. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman
and chief executive in the same position has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. A balance of power and
authority between the Board and management can be ensured by the
operation of the Board, whose members (including the three independent
non-executive directors) are individuals with ample experience, such
that the interests of shareholders can be safeguarded. Furthermore, the
Directors had regular discussions in relation to major matters affecting the
operations of the Group and the Group has an effective risk management
and internal control systems in place for providing adequate checks and
balances. The Board considers that the balance of power and authority
for the present arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly and
effectively. The Board will continue to review and consider splitting the
roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive of the Company at
a time when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into account the
circumstances of the Group as a whole.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting ("“AGM"). The chairperson of the
Board, Ms. Wang Yao was unable to attend the Company’s AGM held on 1
June 2021 due to other business commitments. Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick,
an independent non-executive director of the Company, took the chair of
the AGM, and other Directors including executive and independent non-
executive Directors, attended the AGM to answer questions regarding
activities of the Group.

In light of this situation, the Directors consider that the aforementioned
does not have any material impact on the corporate governance of the
Company during the Relevant Period.

The Directors will carry out a regular review on the Company’s corporate

governance policies and will propose any amendment, if necessary, to
ensure compliance with the Code Provisions from time to time.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, being three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, with a variety
and a balance of skills and experience in accounting, business, finance,
investment and legal profession. The current composition of the Board is
as follows:

EEERRE (&)

Exg

EEZEHE

EXCHAAANRESMEN I=Z2HTEF
R=2BIIFNTESR  REHRBZH(HNY
B k&sR  REG  BE 2R RE
RAREER - EFTGRERBIEWNT ¢

Directors Membership of Board Committee(s)
= E=ZEeHERYK
Executive Directors:
BITES:
Ms. Wang Yao (Chairman and Chief Executive) Chairman of the Nomination Committee
IR (FERES) REZEGEE
Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEEEKE
Ms. Jin Xiaogin
eHBEE+
Ms. Yip Lee Ying
BEN&z+
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES :
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen Chairman of the Audit Committee
REXEL BREEEEFE
Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEEEKE
Member of the Nomination Committee
REEEGKE
Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
MR EE FNEEEEE
Member of the Audit Committee
EREEGKE
Member of the Nomination Committee
REEEGKE
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis Member of the Audit Committee
EEmEE EREEGKE
Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEEeKE
Member of the Nomination Committee
REEZBEBEKE
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Save for Ms. Wang Yao who is the daughter of Ms. Jin Xiaogin and Ms.
Jin Xiaogin who is the mother of Ms. Wang Yao, the Directors have no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

The Code Provisions require directors to disclose to the issuer the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and
other significant commitments as well as the nature of such companies
or organisations and the time involved in such offices. Each Director has
agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors of
a listed issuer must include at least three independent non-executive
directors. In addition, pursuant to Rules 3.10A and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules, every listed issuer is required to have such number of independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board, and
at least one of whom must have appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise. Dr. Ng Lai Man,
Carmen who is a practicing certified public accountant in Hong Kong, a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom
and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, is
regarded as an appropriate person to fulfill this requirement.
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The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year. During the
Relevant Period, the Board has held five board meetings, and the AGM of
the Company was held on 1 June 2021. The attendance of each Director at
these meetings are stated as follows:

Members of the Board

meetings regularly held

EEERRE (&)

EFgTHRTEReR:  AEFRL AT
Ko RNBBHME EFESERTARESE
ZoMARTAR-_ZE-_—E~A-HBETTR
REFKE SEFHEZSER 2B R
T

Attendance/
Number of general
meetings held

Attendance/
Number of Board

HERE HERE
EEERE EXSERERBETRY BRRAEETRE
Executive Directors:
BITESE
Ms. Wang Yao (Chairman and Chief Executive) 5/5 0/1
TR (FELREZR)
Ms. Jin Xiaogin 2/5 0/1
TRELL
Ms. Yip Lee Ying 5/5 1/1
BM&EL T
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen 4/5 11
REXEL
Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick 5/5 171
SRR S
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis 5/5 11
EREmEL

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is accountable to stakeholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among other
things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review corporate and
financial policies and the oversight of the management of the Group's
business and affairs.

The management, consisting of the executive Directors along with other
senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing the
strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and
conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors
and senior executives meet regularly to review the performance of the
businesses of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources and
make financial and operational decisions. The Board also gives clear
directions as to their powers of management including circumstances
where management should report back, and will review the delegation
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate
to the needs of the Group.

EENEERETIK

ExepAKErEASRREAMNDMERAL
BE CETZRAES(EHREE)HFTEER
B BECENMPBEE  UREEAKEDN
EBREBHER -

EEE(ERATER) EREMSRITRAR
ERRBENTESS TR R SR Mg T
WETARENBEELE - AITEERSRTT
BAEEEHEE MR ARERBEER
B ARBBERRMELUBREERE - &
FENERSEERNBENRNG TBMET -
BREEEASEERSENER - T T R
RIRZHE - NRERBBLZHFIEAEENTE

25



Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2021

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERERE ()

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of
the Company and its Shareholders at all times.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of other executive Directors was
held to discuss the matters that they wish to raise.

In compliance with Code Provision A.6.5, the Group will arrange for, and
provide funds for, all the Directors to participate in continuous professional
development ("CPD") to help them refresh their knowledge, skills and
understanding of the Group and its business or to update their skills and
knowledge on the latest development or changes in the relevant statutes,
the Listing Rules and corporate governance practices. The Company will
also update the Directors of any material changes in the Listing Rules and
corporate governance practices from time to time.

During the year, all the Directors have participated in CPD, by attending
external training or seminars, attending in-house training, participating in
e-learning and/or reading materials on various topics covering regulations,
corporate governance, finance and business, to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills, which ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Directors have provided records of
training to the Company with details as below:

Directors

E=

Executive Directors:
HITES :

Ms. Wang Yao
FELL

Ms. Jin Xiaogin
THRELL

Ms. Yip Lee Ying
Bx&EL+

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

REXEL

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick

OB

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

EREmEL
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The terms of reference of Nomination Committee include a nomination
procedure specifying the process and criteria for selection and
recommendation of candidates for directorships of the Company.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement or
a letter of appointment with the Company regarding the appointment
as an executive Director for a term of three years and shall be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles”). Each of the service
agreement and letter of appointment is renewable automatically upon
the expiry of the then current term of appointment, unless terminated by
either party in accordance with the terms thereof.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years and shall
be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings in accordance with the Articles, unless otherwise terminated
in accordance with the relevant letter of appointment. The annual
remuneration payable by the Company to each of the independent non-
executive Directors is HK$240,000 according to the respective letter of
appointment.

Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles, the Directors shall have power at
any time and from time to time to appoint any person to be a Director,
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors. Any
Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Furthermore, pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles, at each AGM of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (the “Company’s Code”)
regarding securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standards set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries,
the Company confirms that all the Directors have complied with the
required standards as stated in the Model Code and the Company’s Code
throughout the Relevant Period.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the audit committee
(the "Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and are
available to Shareholders upon request.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 22 November 2014 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and paragraph C.3 of the Code Provisions as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst other things:

(i) to propose the appointment or removal of the external auditors and
the effectiveness of the audit process;

(i) to discuss with the external auditor on the nature and scope of the
audit work prior to commencement of the audit work;

(iii) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
procedures;

(iv) to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors
and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Group, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

(v) toreview the Company'’s financial information and disclosure thereof,
and to consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may need
to be, reflected in the reports and accounts;

(vi) to review and supervise the Group's financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems and their implementation; and

(vii) to review the arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
financial reporting improprieties.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee consisted
of Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick and Mr. Tang,
Warren Louis, all of whom are independent non-executive Directors. The
chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen who holds the
appropriate professional qualifications as required under Rules 3.10(2) and
3.21 of the Listing Rules.

This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, four meetings of the Audit HE-_ZZ—F+_A=1+—BILEE &
Committee were held (with the attendance of the Company's external ZE2 €D BT R &3 (AN QA FIMNEZEEE B
auditor in compliance with the Code Provisions and the Audit Committee’s ELFA TR R EZEZERESE) - &
terms of reference), with the members' respective record of attendance as B& B 2 HEREWT ¢

follows:

Members of the Audit Committee

ERZEEERE

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES :

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen (Chairman of Audit Committee)
REXBL(FEKZEELE)

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick

Mgkt

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

ERMmEL

During the Relevant Period, the Audit Committee has performed the
following work:

1. reviewed the annual report and the annual results announcement for
the year ended 31 December 2020, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval;

2. reviewed the interim report and the interim results announcement
for the six months ended 30 June 2021, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

3. proposed and recommended to the Board the auditors’ fee and the
appointment of the Company’s new independent external auditor;

4. discussed with the external auditors on the nature and scope of the
audit work prior to the commencement of the audit work;

5. reviewed the internal control review report prepared by an
independent external reviewer; and

6. reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management system of the Group.

Attendance/
Number of Audit
Committee meeting held

HERE
ERZEEERETRE
4/4

4/4

3/4
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Auditor’s remuneration

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment and re-election of our Company’s external auditor and
reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the external auditor,
including whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential
material adverse effect to the Company. BDO Limited is the external
auditor of the Company. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
external auditor received the following remuneration for audit and non-
audit services provided to the Group:

% SLRT HY 5r EA
RNARERZESEEZREZERENERR
NAINEBAZEE - AR E R INE AT E T
TR IEEZBeE - BIEEHEESBESS
BYRARNR BRI BEERNTHEE - FBNIE
EeMEBERA R ARDRINEZE
f-HE—_T-_—F+_A=+—HILFE "
SNEEAZ SRR B IR B Ax RIIE B RIS F AL E
MmURERRI B ZA T -

HK$'000
F

Audit services EZ RS
Non-audit services IEEAZIRTS

Interim review services R ER B RS
Total st

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 November 2014 with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the Code
Provisions as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include, amongst
other things:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(i) to review and approve management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

(i) to consider and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages and overall benefits paid to the Directors and
senior management;

(iv) to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or

appointment; and

(v) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee
consisted of one executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors: Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick, Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, Mr. Tang,
Warren Louis and Ms. Wang Yao. The chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting of the

Remuneration Committee was held with the member's respective record
of attendance as follows:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

FMEEEMRE

Independent Non-executive Directors:

BYFHTES:

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick (Chairman of Remuneration Committee)
MK EE(FNEE ST E)

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

REXEL

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

ERMmEL

Executive Director:
HITES :

Ms. Wang Yao
FELLE

During the Relevant Period, the Remuneration Committee has performed
the following work:

1. reviewed and recommended to the Board on the remuneration
packages of executive Directors and senior management based on
their performance;

2. reviewed and recommended to the Board on the Group’s
remuneration policy;

3. reviewed and recommended to the Board the terms of letter of
appointment of independent non-executive Directors; and

4. reviewed and recommended to the Board the level of remuneration
for independent non-executive Directors and ensure that their level
of remuneration are linked to their contribution in terms of time
commitment and responsibilities undertaken.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Attendance/

Number of Remuneration
Committee meeting held

HERE
FHEEEERETRE
1/1
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REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Code Provisions, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management (as described under the section
“Directors and Senior Management”) by band for the year ended 31
December 2021 is set out below:

Remuneration band

HER
HK$1 to HK$1,000,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on 22
November 2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph A.5 of the Code Provisions as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, amongst other
things:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and to
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the corporate strategy;

(i)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorship;

(iii)  to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and

(iv) to consider and make recommendations to the Board regarding the
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee
consisted of one executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors: Ms. Wang Yao, Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick
and Mr. Tang, Warren Louis. The chairman of the Nomination Committee is
Ms. Wang Yao.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting of the Nomination #HE-ZT-—F+_-A=+—HILFE ' 1%
Committee was held with the member's respective record of attendance ZHE@DRB{T— X ex% KEKBZHELHE

as follows: W

Attendance/

Number of Nomination

Members of the Nomination Committee Committee meeting held

HERE

REZEENE REZESSRETREY
Executive Director:

HITES :
Ms. Wang Yao (Chairman of Nomination Committee) /1

IRt (BEZREL/E)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

BYFHTES:

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen 1/1
REXEL

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick 1/1
Mgt

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis 171
EERmEE

During the Relevant Period, the Nomination Committee has performed the ~ RIBREHIRE - B2 ZEQERETT NIIBE :
following work:

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including skills, 1. BRI EZEEFFHEE  RERAK(BER
knowledge and experience) of the Board; BE - AN R LB

2. discussed and recommended to the Board the re-appointment of 2. # W MEEFFERERESE
Directors;

3. reviewed and assessed the independence of independent non- 3. BREFFZARBBILIFATERNEL
executive Directors of the Company; and MR

4. reviewed the diversity policy and nomination policy adopted. 4. BHRAERIREZ T BER MR BEER -
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Group has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) to
govern the criteria, procedures and process of nomination of Directors.
The Nomination Policy sets out, inter alia, the selection criteria, the
evaluation and procedures in nominating candidates to be appointed
or re-appointed as Directors of the Company for ensuring that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives which are
appropriate to the requirements of the Group’s business.

Criteria for nomination and appointment of Directors

When identifying, assessing and recommending suitable candidates for
directorship for the Board's consideration, the Nomination Committee will
have regard to, but without limitation, the following criteria:

- skills, competence, experience, expertise, professional and
educational qualifications, background and personal qualities of the
candidate that will best complement the effectiveness and current
composition of the Board;

- capability of the candidate to devote the necessary, sufficient time
and commitment to carry out his duties. In this regard, the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organizations, other
executive appointments or other significant commitments will be
considered;

- potential conflicts of interest and assessment of the independence of
the candidate; and

- other factors as the Nomination Committee may deem are in the best
interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive director (“INED"), his or her independence shall be assessed
in accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in the
Listing Rules. Where applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education,
qualifications and experience shall also be evaluated to consider whether
he or she has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise for filling the office of an INED
with such qualifications or expertise as required under the Listing Rules.
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Nomination procedure and process

The Nomination Policy includes the following procedure and process in
respect of the nomination of Directors, subject to the provisions of the
Company's Articles:

- any member of the nomination committee or the Board may invite
and nominate suitable candidates; and external recruitment agencies
may be engaged to assist in identifying and selecting suitable
candidates, if considered necessary;

- the Nomination Committee shall evaluate the nomination based on
criteria set under the Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy
and make recommendation to the Board, including the terms and
conditions of the appointment, for its consideration and approval;

- in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors, the
Nomination Committee shall review the candidate’s overall
contribution and performance and make recommendations to the
Board and/or the shareholders for consideration in connection with
his/her re-election at general meetings; and

- for any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as a
director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship.

The Nomination Policy is subject to review from time to time to ensure
that it continues to be relevant to the needs of the Company and reflects
current regulatory requirements and good governance practice.
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BOARD DIVERSITY

With a view to enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance,
the Board should include a balanced composition of executive and non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) so
that there is a strong independence element on the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy with measurable
objectives. The Nomination Committee evaluates the balance and blend
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives of the Board. Selection
of candidates is based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to age, cultural and educational background, professional
and industry experience, skills, knowledge, ethnicity and other qualities
essential to the Company’s business, and merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board will review such
measurable objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
and ascertain the progress made towards achieving those objectives.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the collective
responsibility of Directors and their corporate governance duties include:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code Provisions and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the Relevant Period, the Board has performed the corporate
governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely manner in
accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the timeframe
stipulated in Rule 13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing Rules. All Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Group on a going concern basis, with supporting assumptions or
qualifications as necessary, for each financial period which give a true
and fair view of the Group’s financial affairs. The Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditors about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 73 to 78 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis and
review their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

During the Relevant Period, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted review of both design and implementation effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group, covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions are adequate. In this respect, the Audit
Committee communicates any material issues to the Board.

During the Relevant Period, the Group appointed SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited to independently perform internal control review of the Group’s
internal control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were reported to
the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover, improvements in internal
control measures as recommended by SHINEWING Risk Services Limited
to enhance the internal control systems of the Group were adopted by
the Board. No significant area of concern that may affect the financial,
operational, compliance, control and risk management of the Group has
been identified.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The Board has the overall
responsibility to maintain the adequacies of resources, staff qualifications
and experience training programs and budget of accounting and financial
reporting function. Based on the findings and recommendations of
SHINEWING Risk Services Limited, reports from the Group’s management
as well as the comments of the Audit Committee, and the Board
considered the internal control and risk management systems effective
and adequate.

Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group has established its enterprise risk management framework in
2016. While the Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective internal controls are maintained, management is responsible
for designing and implementing an internal control system to manage all
kinds of risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks are
identified, assessed, prioritised and allocated treatments. The Group’s risk
management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk Management
- Integrated Framework, which allows the Board and management to
manage the risks of the Group effectively. The Board receives regular
reports through the Audit Committee that oversights risk management
and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks
The principal risks and relevant measures taken by the Group is set out on
pages 12 to 15 under the section "Management Discussion and Analysis” of
this annual report.

Our Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate governance
structure with operational management and controls performed by
operations management, coupled with risk management monitoring
carried out by the finance team and independent internal audit
outsourced to and conducted by SHINEWING Risk Services Limited. The
Group maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified major risks of
the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the Audit Committee, and
management with a profile of its major risks and records management'’s
action taken to mitigate the relevant risks. Each risk is evaluated at least
annually based on its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon
the Group. The risk register is updated by management as the risk owners
with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if applicable, at
least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has been performed. This
review process can ensure that the Group proactively manages the risks
faced by it in the sense that all risk owners have access to the risk register
and are aware of and alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so
that they can take follow-up action in an efficient manner.
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Risk management activities of the Group are performed by management
on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of the risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic management
meeting is held to update the progress of risk monitoring efforts.
Management is committed to ensure that risk management forms part of
the daily business operation processes in order to align risk management
with corporate goals in an effective manner. The Board acknowledged that
it had received a confirmation from the management on the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management framework of the Group.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group. The Board
has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view
that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the
Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint external independent
professionals to perform internal audit function for the Group in order to
meet its needs. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review at least
annually the need for an internal audit function.

Inside Information

The Company has set up an information disclosure policy (the “Disclosure
Policy”) to ensure that the Company shall be in strict compliance with the
disclosure obligation of inside information, that inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved, and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and
consistently made. The Company acknowledges its obligations under
Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules and the principles of inside information
as set forth in the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Disclosure Policy
stipulated responsibilities, guidelines and logistics in the assessment,
approval and dissemination of inside information, strictly prohibited
unauthorised use of confidential information and established procedures
for responding to external enquires or rumours.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yip Lee Ying was appointed by the Board as the Company Secretary of
the Company in April 2016 and she is also an executive Director and the
chief financial officer of the Group. The Company Secretary supports the
Chairman in promoting the highest standards of corporate governance
and facilitates the effective functioning of the Board and its committees.
All Directors have direct access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman on board
governance matters, and is responsible for ensuring that board procedures
are followed and for facilitating timely and appropriate information flows
among directors. Ms. Yip has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training on review of Listing Rules and other compliance
requirements during the year.

The biography of the Company Secretary is set out under the section
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company aims to promote and maintain effective communications
with Shareholders and investors (both individuals and institutions) to
ensure that the Group's information is disseminated to Shareholders and
potential investors in a timely manner and enable them to have a clear
assessment of the enterprise performance.

Extensive information on the Group's activities and financial position
will be disclosed in the annual reports, interim reports, announcements,
circulars and other corporate communications which will be sent to
Shareholders and/or published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.gicl.com.hk).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant
to which the Company may distribute dividends to the shareholders of the
Company by way of cash or shares. Any distribution of dividends shall be in
accordance with the Articles.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend
will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In proposing any
dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia, the
Group's earnings per share; financial conditions including its liquidity
position and capital and debt level; long-term earning capacity; expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirement and future
expansion plans; Shareholders’ and investors’ expectation and industry’s
norm; the market sentiment and circumstances; and any other factors that
the Board considers relevant and appropriate.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is no

assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific
periods.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

General Meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. The Chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, or in their absence, their duly
appointed delegates are available to answer questions at the Shareholders’
meetings. The auditor of the Company is also invited to attend the
Company’s AGM and is available to assist the Directors in addressing
queries from Shareholders relating to the conduct of the audit and the
preparation and contents of the Independent Auditor's Report. Separate
resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’ meetings on each substantial
issue, including the election of individual Directors.

Notice of the AGM together with related papers are sent to the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the meeting, setting
out details of each proposed resolution, voting procedures and other
relevant information. All votes of Shareholders at the general meeting will
be decided by poll, where appropriate, in accordance with Article 13.7. The
Chairman will explain such rights and procedures during the AGM before
voting on the resolutions. An independent scrutineer will be appointed to
count the votes and the poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange after the AGM.

Shareholders can make a requisition to convene an extraordinary general
meeting ("EGM") pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles. The procedures for
the Shareholders to convene an EGM are as follows:

1. Any two or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist”) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings shall have the right, by written notice, to require an EGM to
be called by the directors for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition.

2. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board of the
Company signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
following address:

Principal place of business of the Company

Address: Unit 01, 23/F, World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong
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3. If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting within 21
days of such deposit, the Requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them may do so in the same manner which shall be held no later
than the day which falls three months after the expiration of the
said twenty-one day period, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the Requisitionist as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to direct enquiries to the
Company

For matters in relation to the Board, Shareholders can contact the
Company at the following:

Address:  Unit 01, 23/F, World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central,

Hong Kong
Email: info@gic.com.hk
Tel: (852) 2111 0998
Fax: (852) 21110819

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and
registration, change of name or address, loss of share certificates or
dividend warrants, the registered Shareholders can contact:

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited

Address:  Room 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2153 1688

Fax: (852) 3020 5058
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Relevant Period, there has been no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals

at Shareholders’ meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her proposal (the
"Proposal”) together with his/her detailed contact information at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 01, 23/F,
World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong in the same
manner as set out above.

The request will be verified by the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Board will be asked to include the Proposal in the agenda for the
general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration of
the Proposal raised by the Shareholder concerned at the general meeting
varies according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(@) Atleast 21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires approval by
way of a special resolution of the Company in an EGM or resolution of
the Company in an AGM.

(b) At least 14 days’' notice in writing if the Proposal requires approval in
any other EGM.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Global International Credit Group Limited (the “Company” together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group”)) is pleased to issue the Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG") Report for the year ended 31 December 2021
("FY2021") which outlines its policies and practices in four aspects, namely
environmental protection, human resources, operating practices and
community involvement, with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide (the
"ESG Guide") as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) for disclosures.

During FY2021, save as disclosed herein, the Group complied with the
applicable provisions set out in the ESG Guide.

Unless otherwise stated, this report covers the Group's office in Hong Kong
and all the operating subsidiaries of the Group.

Board Statement - ESG Governance Structure

As a responsible and caring corporate citizen, the Group upholds the
principle that good business practices and corporate social responsibility
are vital for the sustainability of its success. The Group has developed an
effective governance structure to ensure quality ESG performance and
reporting. Our ESG governance structure is divided into two components,
namely the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and the ESG
working team. The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group's overall
ESG strategy and reporting. An ESG working team, composing of core
members across all functions, has been established to facilitate the Board
to identify relevant ESG issues and to assess their materiality to the Group's
business as well as the Company’s stakeholders, through reviewing our
operations and internal discussions.

The following governance structure shows the key roles with well-defined
responsibilities for managing our ESG-related efforts:

The Board
Identifies and evaluates ESG-related risks to ensure appropriate and
effective ESG risk management and internal control systems are in
place;

provides strategic guidance to ensure the Group's social

responsibility objectives are aligned with and go beyond the
minimum legal requirements;
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sets ESG-related goals in relation to the Group's businesses as well as
management approach and strategy;

oversees formulation and implementation of action plans by the ESG
working team and the achievement of ESG-related goals and Key
Performance Indicators ("KPIs"); and

approves the ESG Report.

ESG working team
Assists the Board and engages stakeholders to identify and prioritise
material ESG-related aspects and KPIs that are relevant to the Group
and its stakeholders;

works through the KPIs and allocate the right tools and resources to
handle the ESG issues;

formulates and executes action plans and ensure execution by
respective teams to achieve the ESG-related goals set by the Board;

collects and analyses ESG data, monitoring and evaluating the
Group’s ESG performance and regularly report to the Board; and

prepares the ESG Report.

Feedback

This report is designed to allow our stakeholders and the public to have
a more comprehensive and profound understanding of the Group's
corporate social responsibility and culture. We welcome feedback and
comments on to this report and its contents which will lead us to create
further common value. Please feel free to provide your comments by email
to info@gic.com.hk.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY

ASSESSMENT

The Group actively strives to better understand our stakeholders and
engage them to ensure that improvements are implemented to our
products and services. We strongly believe that our stakeholders would
play a crucial role for sustaining the success of our business in the
challenging market. The Group has identified key stakeholders that
are important to our business and established various channels for
communication. The following table provides an overview of the Group’s
key stakeholders, and various platforms and methods of communication
are used to reach, listen and respond.

Stakeholders

Possible concerned issues

MEEBALTHSERE TG
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REASEHEARMSEBA LR  AERE
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Communication and responses

MamAEAL
HKEx

BEBRS M

Government
B

Shareholders/
Investors

BRBREE

Media & Public
BERERAR

Customers
BF
Employees
(=]

Peer/Industry
associations

BT/ EXHE

Community

T E
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BEMEBEEE

Compliance of listing rules, timely and accurate
announcements

By EWARR RS MERTEAE

Compliance of laws and regulations, preventing tax
evasion, and social welfare

BERRER - BB RREHE S EN

Corporate governance system, business strategies
and performance, investment returns

ERERHE XHERBERERR - REDR

Corporate governance, environmental protection,
human right
TEER  RERE - AR

Quality of loan services, repayment terms,
handling time, reasonable interest costs, privacy
protection

EXRGE R - EEGK  RIERRE - 51
B - FLEBARE

Rights and benefits, employee compensation,
training and development, work hours, working
environment

R RN - EE WM - FIEER - TR
M~ TERIE

Experience sharing and cooperation,
fair competition
ERHTELE - ATHF

Community environment, employment and
community development, social welfare

HERE  EREMEBER LSRN

BIE o] fE

Meetings, training, workshops, programs, website
updates and announcements

& B HEg - 5HE - MUEHLAS

Interaction and visits, government inspections, tax
returns and other information

EFNFD  BIFRE - ARBEHRLEATY

Organising and participating in seminars,
interviews, shareholders’ meetings, financial
reports or operation reports for investors, media
and analysts

BB 2EAREE  BR IO ABRHRE
e - Gk RERRE - RRERRIVER
TREERS

Issue of newsletters on the Group's website
AN LR RS LT b

After-sales services, email and customer service
hotline, visits and meetings

ERRY  EBREPREAG - R G

Trainings, interviews for employees, issuing
employee handbooks, internal memos,
employee suggestion boxes

Holl - BEBEITEAR - BREIFM - AR
Bk  RUEBEERM

Industry conference and seminars, site visits
TESEARNE  BHER

Developing community activities, employee
voluntary activities and community welfare
subsidies and donations
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Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns from stakeholders. The
feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed decisions,
and to better assess and manage the resulting impact.

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG reporting by
understanding the key ESG issues that are important to the business of the
Group.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG aspects
through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking
Relevant ESG aspects were identified through the review of relevant
ESG reports of the local and international industry peers.

The materiality of each ESG aspect was determined based on the
importance of each ESG aspect to the Group through internal
discussion of the ESG working team with reference to the
recommendation of the ESG Guide.

Step 2: Prioritisation — Stakeholder Engagement
The ESG working team is responsible to discuss with and collect
feedback from the key stakeholders on material ESG-related aspects
identified above to ensure all the key aspects are covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues
Based on the assessment and recommendation from the ESG working
team through step 1 and step 2 above, the Board is responsible to
select and confirm all the related ESG-related aspects, which are
significant to the Group’s business and important to our stakeholders
and in compliance with the ESG Guide, to be included in the ESG
Report.

Based on the evaluation for FY2021, there are four major ESG-aspects
identified, namely, i) environmental protection, ii) human resources,
iii) operating practice and iv) community involvement which will be
discussed in this ESG Report. The principles of materiality, quantitative and
consistency as recommended by the ESG Guide have been applied. This
ESG Report adopts methodologies for the calculation of key performance
indicators that are consistent with previous years. There was no significant
change in the ESG-aspects as there was no significant change in the
Group's business scope.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to leading by example, inspiring others to strive
for environmental sustainability, and minimising our environmental
impacts from operations. We have implemented eco-friendly measures to
reduce carbon footprint in our business operations. During FY2021, there
was no material non-compliance issue with relevant laws and regulations
related to the environment.

Emission

As a provider of money lending services, the Group's operations do
not have a material impact on the environment in relation to pollutant
emissions. Nevertheless, the Group still indirectly generates greenhouse
gas ("GHG") emission through our consumption of electricity and
production of paper waste at the Group’s office in Hong Kong, which
occupies a gross floor area of 4,220 square feet. Several measures to reduce
the Group’s GHG emissions have been implemented to demonstrate
the Group’s determination of maintaining environmental sustainability.
Those measures included promoting paperless office by usage of tablets,
encouraging double-sided printing, and encouraging employees to switch
off all idle appliances.

During FY2021, the Group's total GHG emissions was approximately 24.7
tonnes (FY2020: 24.8 tonnes) and the total GHG emission per average
employee was 1.24 tonnes (FY2020: 1.13 tonnes).
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FY2021 FY2020

—E-—& ZETF

GHG emissions (in tonnes) BEREHER (A AR B FE VHEE
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) MR ER YR (EE2)

— Electricity consumption (in tonnes) —BFEE(LAANEET) 22.8 225
Other indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3) H bR =R e (& ES3)

- Disposal of paper waste (in tonnes) —RIBEE A E (LAANEET) 1.9 23
Total GHG emissions (in tonnes) BERREEE RS (LAAMERT) 24.7 24.8
Average number of employees FHEEHA 20 22
GHG emissions per average employee EEAYRERBEIRE

(in tonnes) (LARMEEH) 1.24 1.13
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Waste Management

The Group’s operations do not produce any hazardous waste, which
includes but not limited to chemical wastes, clinical wastes and hazardous
chemicals. The non-hazardous waste produced by the Group was mainly
paper waste. Measures for reducing and recycling paper waste were put
in place. We encourage double-sided printing, as well as reuse of single
side printed paper. A recycling company was engaged to collect and
recycle our paper waste regularly. In FY2021, approximately 63% of our
paper waste was recycled (FY2020: 51%). To further reduce the Group's
non-hazardous waste, we have also purchased some electronic tablets
so as to facilitate usage of electronic document and promote a paperless
office.

Non-hazardous waste (in kg) H|EREY(LLAFED)
Paper waste (in kg) BE4K (BAD T3t
Average number of employees FHEEHA

Paper waste per average employee (in kg)

Use of Resources

The Group is committed to upholding high environmental standards in
order to promote environmental friendliness. As a provider of money
lending services, the Group strives to minimise environmental impact by
reducing energy and paper consumption and encouraging recycling of
office supplies and other materials.

Energy Consumption

The electricity consumed by the Group’s head office was the largest
contributor to the greenhouse gas footprint. To reduce the Group's carbon
and energy footprints, the Group has posted some energy conservation
reminders in place. Computers and office lights are switched off during
non-business hours to minimise light pollution and reduce energy
consumption. The total electricity consumption increased slightly by
approximately 1% in FY2021 when compared to FY2020 as working hours
were longer in FY2021 as compared to FY2020 as working hours had been
shortened during the several waves of Covid-19.
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Electricity consumption (in kWh)

Average number of employees FHEESE
Electricity consumption per average
employee (in kWh)

Paper Usage

Efficiency in usage of paper has been promoted and communicated
to our employees. Tablets were provided to employees to encourage
reduction of usage of paper. The single-sided printings were collected for
reuse. Paper usage increased by approximately 10% when compared with
last year as the Group resumed its marketing campaigns on distributing
leaflets to target customer while such activities were limited due to the
weak economic environment in FY2020.

Paper usage (in kg) BEEADFE)

FHEEHE

Average number of employees

Paper usage per average employee (in kg)

Water Consumption

The Group's water consumption comes from the daily business operations
in the office. As the Group's office does not have a separate meter for water
consumption measurement, the Group does not have any data on the
amount of water consumed. Due to the nature of the Group’s business,
water consumption is not identified as a material issue relevant to the
Group's operation. Nevertheless, as water is a precious resource, water
conservation measures have been taken and encouraged throughout the
office.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of our business, the Group does not have any direct
and significant impact on the environment and natural resources in the
course of its operations. By taking the above-mentioned green initiatives,
the Group is committed to doing our part to mitigate our environmental
impact and acting in a manner that is both environmentally and socially
responsible.
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Climate Change Impact

Awareness over climate change continues to grow and is one of the most
discussed topics among nations as rising temperatures and extreme
weather are threatening the community and our business operations.
Although the operations of the Group does not involve production, the
Group is committed to managing the potential climate-related risks and
to adopt environmental friendly operating measures to reduce GHG
emissions. The Group has implemented risk management exercise in
identifying and mitigating climate-related risks.

Physical risk — The increased frequency and severity of extreme weather
events such as typhoons, storms, and heavy rains bring acute and chronic
physical risks to the Group’s business and the safety of our employees. To
minimize the potential risks, the Group has established mitigation plans,
including flexible working arrangements and precautionary measures
during bad or extreme weather conditions.

Transition risk — More stringent policies and reporting requirements for
corporate sustainability may expose enterprises to higher risks of claim
and compliance costs. In response to the policy and legal risks, the Group
constantly monitors any changes in laws or regulations to avoid cost
increments, non-compliance fines or reputational risks. In addition, the
Group will continue its efforts to control energy consumption and carbon
emissions.
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Target and Achievement

With the Group’s efforts in minimising its impacts on the environment, the
Group has successfully achieved the following emission target and energy
use efficiency targets, which were set with reference to the relevant data in
FY2020, in FY2021:

Achievement

BR

Aspects

AE

Not more than 25 tonnes
%A 2508

GHG emissions
BERBHN
Waste production Recycle at least 50% of
our paper waste
BEYELE TR EUE D50%H BEAR

Energy consumption Not more than 30,000 kWh

Bl 4763% ) R 4L

BEREREE
AEERERLBRREFEMNTHNOE S R
T W ERFEELRE R MR B
BRE2E_Z_THREENHEBBREMET)
ERCHES AT AR

Slightly lower than the set target
B AERATE B F

Recycled approximately 63% of our paper waste

Limited increase in energy consumption to 1.3% despite increase in

overall working hours and within the set target

E b= % 130,000F FL B

Paper usage Not more than 1,100 kg

BEBRIRIEZM - HaRAERR LI 3% - LERMHERZEA

Limited increase in total paper usage to 10% despite increase in

marketing activities from business recovery and within the set target

A RZ00R T

BIRA

Having considered the nature of the Group'’s business and its continuous
efforts in minimising its impacts on environment, unless there is a material
change of the Group’s business scope and business scale, the Group has
set emission targets of the total GHG emission, non-hazardous waste, and
use of resources to be maintained at a similar level of FY2021 for the next
3-5 years.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group regards employees as one of the most valuable assets of
the Group and regards the personal development of its employees as
highly important. The Group has a set of HR management policies and
procedures in place to set out the Group's standard of staff recruitment,
remuneration, work periods, rest periods as well as termination of
employment and compensation matters. The Group strictly complies
with the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations which cover
all employment protection (including the provision of a safe working
environment and protection of employees from occupational hazards) and
benefits.
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Employment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed 20 full-time employees
(2020: 22) which are all located in Hong Kong. The Group has a diverse
workforce in terms of gender and age, generating creative opinions and
different level of capabilities. The following table sets forth the number
and breakdown of our full-time employees as at 31 December 2021:

Age 30

or below

=TEIAT

Male 1
Bt

Female 0
el

Total 1
@5t

Note: All the employees of the Group are full-time employees.

Remunerations of the employees of the Group are determined with
reference to the prevailing market standard as well as the competency,
qualifications and experience of individual employees. Discretionary
bonuses based on financial results of the Group as well as individual
performance will be paid to the employees as recognition of their
contribution to the Group annually. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package and promotion opportunities of employees and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard in order
to retain talents. To increase the employees’ sense of belonging, the Group
also offer various welfare incentives to employees, including insurance
schemes, over-time allowance, various paid leaves and holiday gifts.

The Group adopts equal employment opportunity policies and treats
all the employees equally, and their employment, remuneration and
promotion will not be affected by their social identities such as ethnicity,
race, nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political faction
and marital status.

Rk - ERERHRS (B)

=3
RZB-—F+-A=+—8 " K£EEA20
Z2BES(ZZEFF %) HEHRE
RES - ARBEETRMRRFIRNZ TR
TEK SEIREEEAIEMNRE  LAE
TRBEMREN - TRENBRMR=ZZ=_—F
T A=+—BH02RESEE KB :

Age 31
to 40 Above 40 Total
=t+—ZM+5 M+aE A £ st
5 5 11
6 3 9
11 8 20

M AKE2BEERERIESR
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HERET R M
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MR REC Fik - MERE - BERER
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The management believes that employees are important assets of the
Group, and remains committed to attracting and retaining talent with
diverse backgrounds for achieving sustainable growth and maintaining

EHERS BERAKENEREE H WM
BRNOBEIRREBAETRABEROAT - UE
RAHBERIRFBENERE - AEER

a stable turnover rate. The turnover rates of the Group’s workforce for

FY2021 are as below:

Turnover rate (%) 2K (%)
Overall B

By gender e ]|

- Male - 5

- Female - T

By age group REERAE R

- Age 30 or below - 30BREIAT
- Age 31t040 - 31BRE405%
- Above 40 - 403K A £

~F - ERRERRRAEMT

FY2021 FY2020
—E-—F —TTF
B EE R FE
20.0% 4.5%
20.0% 0.0%
20.0% 8.3%
100.0% 0.0%
10.0% 0.0%
12.5% 11.1%

Note: All the employees of the Group are located in Hong Kong.

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy working
environment to its employees, and encourages them to achieve a balance
between work and a healthy life. Air purifiers are placed in the workplace
to improve air circulation. We take a systematic approach to safeguard
the health and safety of our employees by reducing the likelihood of
safety risks occurrence in the office so we aim at training employee’s
responsiveness to emergencies. Over the past three years, i.e., for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to 2021, there was no instance of injury reported
nor work-related fatalities occurred within our Group. The Group provides
medical insurance for employees and the coverage of insurance includes
hospital and surgical service, dental services and out-patient fees. The
Group complies with the relevant occupational health and safety laws and
regulations.

In light of the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has implemented timely
precautionary measures to safeguard the health of its employees.
The Group has actively sourced surgical masks and other prevention
materials for distributing to employees and has also provided subsidies to
employees to purchase epidemic prevention materials. More air purifiers
are purchased and placed in various locations in the workplace. Employees
are required to wear a mask as far as feasible and keep appropriate social
distance with others when in common facilities of the workplace. The
Group has also implemented certain contingency measures during the
multiple waves of infections, including flexible working hours, working
from home and split team arrangements. Employees are also encouraged
to receive COVID-19 vaccines with paid leave and subsidies offered.
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In addition, preventive measures have also been taken at the Group’s
office building by the property management company, including installing
infrared temperature sensors at the entrance of the lobby to prevent
possible infected person entering the office building. The Group has
also enhanced the cleaning of the workplace where frequently touched
surfaces were cleaned and disinfected regularly, in order to maintain a
clean working environment.

Training and Development
The Group encourages employees to participate in on-the-job training and
continuing education to create opportunities for career development.

In order to help employees acclimatise to the volatile business
environment, the Group provides continuous updates in relation to
market and industry trends as well as updates on relevant regulations
to its employees. In addition, the Group also encourages continuous
personal development of its employees by implementing an educational
reimbursement program.

The Group also invites directors and senior management to attend
training in relation to updates on the Listing Rules, corporate governance,
relevant laws and regulations so as to maintain sustainable professional
development and refresh their knowledge.

The detailed breakdown of the percentage of employees trained and the
average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category was as follows:

Average training hours
(hours/employee)

Rk - ERERHRS (B)

AN/ E Y= FNCIDIPeRiS SE ok 0N = E20:)0
‘bt BREABAODRLEAINMOEE
RifEes - UPIILBEREEARMAKNE - A%
BIRInoR TS PAMEER T - HEREE
MREETERFTRIES - ARFRFNT
TFIRE -

EIRER
AEBEESEES 2 MERIE L FHFEEE
BERBRAEKS -

RiBIE B EEIR B EBRR - AEERFE
MEEERFEEENEMERBE N LMBRAE
MO EM - RIL 2N AEBINEBHETT
REWMBEE  HPHEEENSEBAARER -

AEETBFEERSAEEE2REH LN
MA - EER - HEERRERRHBEN
Fol - AR EE R BRI R SR GANF -

REERREEERETNZIEEB D LS
% (E B 5 )| B BB an T

Percentage of employee
trained (%)

5935 3 B B

(I ER) ZHEREE D (%)
FY2021 FY2020 FY2021 FY2020
—E--F CZE-FF B CZZT-FTHF
MBFEE MINEE B FEE HIREE
Overall 2@ 3.2 2.5 55.0% 50.0%
By gender R
- Male - B 1.3 0.5 63.6% 30.0%
- Female g 5.6 43 44.4% 66.7%
By employment category REEER
- Senior management - BREEE 5.2 5.0 60.0% 80.0%
- Middle management - RRERE 4.7 3.7 50.0% 57.1%
. General staff . —RET 1.1 0.5 55.6% 30.0%
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Labour Standards

The Group is committed to comply, with the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and associated guidelines. Every
act of employment is subject to a stringent internal review process
that involves a well-defined monitoring procedure designed to verify a
candidate’s personal information in order to avoid misrepresentation and
any form of child and forced labour. During FY2021, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other laws and regulations
relating to employment and labour practices (FY2020: Nil).

OPERATING PRACTICES

Customer Care

Customer care is one of the core values of the Group. The Group is
committed to provide customers with thoughtful and consistently high
standard of service and strive to treat customers fairly at all stages of its
business relationship. With a “Clients First” principal, the Group emphasises
a one-on-one personal approach to service and provides a variety of highly
flexible loan solutions to its customers.

Front-line employees are well-trained with adequate and update
knowledge on relevant regulations to ensure the services provided are
complied with all relevant regulations. The Group also acknowledges the
increasing use of social media and electronic applications, and strives
to enhance its service delivery through the development of mobile
applications and incorporating various value-added features to improve
customer experience. Complaint system has been set up for customers
to address comments and complaints. Our service pledge is to follow up
and resolve complaints in a responsive manner. During FY2021, no written
complaints from customers were reported (FY2020: Nil)

Customer education is also another topic that we have been working
on as we value the well-being of our customers and society. The Group
communicates the latest market information to customers through its
social media channels, such as news relating to fraud cases commenced by
illegal financial intermediates and tips for prevention from being cheated,
in order to increase customer's awareness.
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Product Responsibility and Customer Privacy

The Group values the trust of its customers and as a provider of money
lending services, the Group has access to significant personal data of its
customers and therefore ensuring the privacy of customer information is
one of the issues the Group cares about the most.

The Group is committed to the full implementation and has complied with
the Six Data Protection Principles and the requirements of the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486, Laws of Hong Kong) (the “PDPQ").
The Group has formulated a set of privacy principles regarding collection,
retention, use, security, openness and accessibility of personal information
to ensure customer information received is only for its intended purpose
and to prevent information leakage, such as:

requiring employees not to retain or disclose any confidential
information about the Group’s business activities and other sensitive
confidential data to any third parties;

requiring customers to acknowledge their rights under the PDPO,
the purpose of collecting their personal data upon completion and
signing of the application forms;

ensuring that confidential personal data is not obtained through
telephone conversations; and

ensuring that customer files are kept in a locked cabinet.

Employees are also invited and encouraged to attend the training courses
organised by the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data to increase
awareness and understanding of the PDPO. The Group will continue to
monitor, review and, when necessary, update its privacy principles and
policies to ensure they are in compliance with the PDPO.

The Group also understands that our computer systems may be prone to
hackers” attacks due to increasing hacker activities, therefore, the Group
regularly conducts IT control reviews to update the security system.

Protection of Intellectual Property

The Group protects its intellectual property rights by the use and
registration of domain names and trademarks. The Group'’s trademarks
and domain names are constantly monitored, and renewed prior to their
expiration.

The Group also prohibits the installation or copying of any unlicensed
software onto computers of the Group.
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Supply Chain Management

As a money lending service provider, while there is no major procurement
involved in our business, the Group mainly engages third party services
providers to provide services such as information technology services,
advertising services and legal and consulting services. The Group has
set up a procurement policy with defined criteria and procedure in the
selection of suppliers, our evaluation criteria include factors such as
price, service or product quality, stability, capability, and experience.
Preference will also be given to potential suppliers that demonstrate
their commitment to the environment. Besides, to ensure competitive
fairness, we will obtain quotations from two or more potential suppliers
for any new supplier engagement with a defined approval mechanism. An
annual review on the existing suppliers will also be performed to ensure a
consistent performance.

As there is no major procurement involved in the Group’s business, the
Board considers the number of suppliers in not a material ESG issue to be
reported.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and during the Reporting Period, the Group has complied, to
the best of its knowledge, with applicable laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the business of the Group, including but not limited
to:

Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163, Laws of Hong Kong) ("MLO")
Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance
(Cap. 615, Laws of Hong Kong)

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622, Laws of Hong Kong)

Competition Ordinance (Cap. 619, Laws of Hong Kong)

Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57, Laws of Hong Kong)

Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486, Laws of Hong Kong)
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201, Laws of Hong Kong)
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong)

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited

In particular, as a money lenders license holder, the Money Lenders
Ordinance (“MLO") constitutes a significant influence to the Group's
money lending business. The credit approval policy and process adopted
by the Group has been designed to ensure that the Group’s business
operates in accordance with the MLO. The Group also regularly monitors,
reviews and, when necessary, updates the existing policy to ensure the
money lending business is strictly in compliance with the MLO.
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Anti-corruption and Anti-money Laundering

In order to uphold the highest ethical standards, all management and staff
of the Group are required to strictly follow the Group’s Code of Conduct
and to sign acknowledgements that they understand and agree to the
Code of Conduct adopted by the Group. With the purpose of preventing
potential bribery, extortion and fraud, the Group's Code of Conduct clearly
states that:

Employees shall not accept gifts or other benefits that are beyond
common business hospitality, or the head of department or the chief
executive shall be consulted.

Under no circumstances should an employee offer bribes to any
person or company for the purpose of obtaining or retaining
business.

Employees should always avoid any situation involving a conflict,
or that could be perceived by others as a conflict, between
their personal interests, or those of their close relatives, and the
performance of their official duties.

If a potential conflict exists, employees should make prompt and full
disclosure to the management.

The Group has also adopted a whistleblowing policy and procedures for
all levels under the Group. The Group’s whistleblowing policy encourages
all internal staff to report actual or suspected improper conduct, in
confidence, to the Group's executive directors or the Group’s Audit
Committee if the suspected improper conduct involves the Group’s
executive directors.

During FY2021, there were no concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or our employees (FY2020: Nil).
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To prevent and detect money laundering and terrorist financing, the
Group follows the “Guideline on Compliance of Anti-Money Laundering
and Counter-Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed Money
Lenders” ("AML/CTF Guideline”) issued by the Companies Registry and
has incorporated policies and procedures in our operation and credit
guidelines and policies, which include procedures for customer due
diligence, reporting of suspicious transactions, record-keeping, and staff
training. The Group's policies and procedures in respect of prevention and
detection of money laundering and terrorist financing activities include,
but are not limited to, the following:

Check loan applicants against the sanctioned countries, firms, entities
and individuals from database provided by professional compliance
firm.

Conduct customer due diligence based on result of risk assessment
on each potential customer.

Carry out know-your-client procedures by verifying the applicant’s
identity using reliable and independent source documents.

All loan repayments from customers are made by cheque, bank
transfer or autopay with their own bank accounts.

The Group will report any suspicious transactions to the Joint
Financial Intelligence Unit using the standard form or the e-channel
“STREAMS”.

The Group maintains all essential information of our customers, with
the PDPO.

The Group encourages and supports its employees to maximise
their potential and to seek practical and professional training,
when available, on matters related and relevant to their roles and
responsibilities, the money lending business and current legislation
and practices.

The Group also engages an independent third party to perform
independent reviews on the Group's policies to ensure compliance with

the AML/CTF Guideline.

During FY2021, the Group did not identify any non-compliance related to
anti-money laundering (FY2020: Nil).
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group is committed to honoring its corporate social responsibility for
the benefit of the society by participating in a variety of charitable events
and cultivating the concept of corporate social responsibility throughout
the organisation. The Group has been awarded the “Caring Company
Award" for over ten consecutive years by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service in recognition of our commitment in serving the community and
caring for our employees. The Group participates in a variety of charitable
events every year and the followings summarised the Group's contribution
during the year:

Made donations of HK$99,000 to support the Urban Peacemaker
Evangelistic Fellowship, World Wide Fund for Nature HK, Médecins
Sans Frontieres, Orbis, World Vision, Po Leung Kuk, Children’s Cancer
Foundation and The Red Cross Hong Kong (FY2020: HK$73,000).
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) presents their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 79.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK5.3 cents per
ordinary share, totalling HK$21,200,000 payable to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 10
June 2022. The proposed final dividend will be paid on or about Friday, 24
June 2022 following approval at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

No arrangement under which a shareholder has waived or agreed to waive
any dividends was made by the Company.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$99,000 (2020: HK$73,000).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2021 available
for distribution to Shareholders amounted to HK$569,344,000 (2020:
HK$570,528,000).
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SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURES

No new shares or debentures were issued by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Details of the share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAXATION RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 160 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither our Company nor any of our subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of our Company’s listed securities during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted and
approved pursuant to a written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed
on 22 November 2014 and its refreshment of the scheme mandate limit
was approved at an extraordinary general meeting held on 11 November
2015. The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and
to recognise and acknowledge the contributions which the Eligible
Participants (defined in paragraph below) have made or may make to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants
with the opportunity to own a personal stake in the Company with a view
to motivating the Eligible Participants and/or attracting and retaining or
otherwise maintaining on-going relationship with the Eligible Participants
whose contributions are, will be or are likely to be beneficial to the long
term growth of the Group.

The Directors (which include a duly authorised committee thereof) may, at
its absolute discretion, invite any person belonging to any of the following
classes of participants (“Eligible Participants”), to take up options (the
"Options”) to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”):

() any Director (whether executive or non-executive or independent
non-executive), employee (whether full-time or part-time), officer,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or any entity in which the Company or any
subsidiary holds any interest (“Invested Entity”);

(i) any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
any Director (whether executive or non-executive or independent
non-executive), employee (whether full time or part time), officer,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(i) any corporation wholly-owned by any person mentioned in clause (i)
above.

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of
Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options available to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed the Scheme
Mandate Limit (i.e. 10% of the Shares in issue as at 11 November 2015
being the date of approval of the refreshed limit by the Shareholders). The
Company had 400,000,000 Shares in issue as at 11 November 2015, the
refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit allows the Company to issue under the
Share Option Scheme a maximum of 40,000,000 Shares, representing 10%
of the issued shares as at the date of this annual report.

Notwithstanding the above, the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares
in issue from time to time.
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The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all Options granted to an Eligible Participant (including exercised and
outstanding Options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue from time to time, unless approved by the Shareholders in
general meeting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and notified
by the board of directors to each grantee, which period may commence
on a day after the date upon which the offer for the grant of options is
made but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the option. No further options may be granted more than 10 years
after 22 November 2014.

The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from 22 November 2014, the date on which the Share Option Scheme was
adopted.

The subscription price per share under the Share Option Scheme (the
“Subscription Price”) shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall
not be less than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which must be a
Business Day;

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five Business Days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a share.

For the purpose of calculating the Subscription Price, where the Company
has been listed for less than five Business Days, the new issue price shall
be used as the closing price for any Business Day falling within the period
before listing.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.0 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
an option within 21 days from the date of the offer of grant of the option.

There were no outstanding options at the beginning and at the end of
FY2021. No share options under the Share Option Scheme were granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Wang Yao (Chairman and Chief Executive)
Ms. Jin Xiaogin

Ms. Yip Lee Ying

Independent non-executive Directors:
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles, Ms. Wang Yao and Mr. Tang,
Warren Louis shall retire from office by rotation at the next annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of their independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTER OF
APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company regarding her appointment as executive Director for a term
of three years and shall continue thereafter unless terminated by not less
than six months written notice or otherwise in accordance with the service
agreement.

None of the executive Directors has or is proposed to have a service
contract that is not determinable by the Company within one year without
the payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

According to the terms of the service agreements entered into between
the Company and the executive Directors, each of the executive Directors
will receive a monthly salary which is subject to annual review by the Board
and the Remuneration Committee. Each of the executive Directors is also
entitled to a discretionary performance bonus as may be determined by
the Board upon the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.

The emoluments of Directors have been determined with reference
to the skills, knowledge, involvement in the Company'’s affairs and the
performance of each Director, and to the profitability of the Company and
prevailing market conditions during the year.
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Each of our independent non-executive Directors, Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen,
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis and Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company and were appointed for a three-year
term unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the relevant letter of
employment.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY'S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the related party transactions as disclosed in Note
29 of the consolidated financial statements, no other transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance to which the Company’s
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which a Director and
a Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had interests in
businesses, which compete or are likely to compete either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Each of Blossom Spring Global Limited (“Blossom Spring”) and Ms. Jin
Xiaogin (“Ms. Jin") has provided annual confirmations in respect of the
compliance with non-competition undertaking (the “Undertaking”) given
by them.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
compliance by each of Blossom Spring and Ms. Jin with the Undertaking
during the year ended 31 December 2021. The independent
non-executive Directors have confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain,
there is no breach by any of Blossom Spring and Ms. Jin of the Undertaking
given by them.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 19 to 21 to this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of each Director
and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO were as follows:

Interest in the Company

Nature of

Name of Director interest

Capacity

EEpLR g% BEME

Ms. Jin Interest in a controlled corporation® Long position
2Rt REEEE R R
Note:

(1) Blossom Spring is the registered and beneficial owner of these shares. The entire issued
share capital of Blossom Spring is held by Ms. Jin. Therefore, Ms. Jin is deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by Blossom Spring for the purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year did the Directors or
chief executive of the Company (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) have any interest in, or had been granted or exercised, any
rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if applicable) of
the Company, and its other associated corporations which required to be
disclosed pursuant to the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the Share Option Scheme of the Company as set out in this annual
report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company had an interest or a short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO:

Nature of

Name of Director interest

Capacity

EEnA 514 BEME

Blossom Spring™ Beneficial owner Long position
BEREAA )
Mr. Wong Tai Wai®@ Interest of spouse Long position
T REEED i B e )
Notes:

(1) The entire issued share capital of Blossom Spring is held by Ms. Jin. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Jin is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Blossom Spring.

(2) Mr. Wong Tai Wai is the spouse of Ms. Jin. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wong Tai Wai is
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in which Ms. Jin is deemed to be
interested.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2021, there was no other
person so far known to the Directors or chief executives of the Company,
other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company as having
an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for employment contracts, no contracts concerning the management
and administrative of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's top five customers
accounted for approximately 20.6% of total revenue and the Group's single
largest customer accounted for approximately 7.7% of total revenue.

All the Group's top five customers were independent third parties. To the
best of their knowledge, information and belief, none of the Group, its
Directors, members of senior management, and their respective associates
and Shareholders who own more than 5% of the issued shares, had any
interest in or financial or business relationship with any of the Group's top
five customers during the year.

The Group had no major supplier due to the nature of principal activities of
the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2021 as disclosed in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted fully exempted connected transactions
under the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'’S INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Group's
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

There were no contract of significance for the provision of services to

the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the Company’s controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Appropriate Directors’ liability insurance has been arranged to indemnify
the Directors for liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The coverage
and the sum insured under the policy are reviewed annually. Further, the
Company'’s Articles of Association provide that Directors are entitled to be
indemnified out of the Company’s assets against claims from third parties
in respect of certain liabilities.

The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance cover
in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is
sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company's issued shares as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report (being 20
April 2022).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Additional information of business review and the relationship between
the Group and key stakeholders is set out on pages 7 to 18 under the
section “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report, which
forms part of this directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to strive for environmental sustainability, and
minimising its environmental impact from operations.

Further information on the Group's environmental issues are detailed in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 44 to 61 to
this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has complied
in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2021
and up to the date of this annual report, there was no other significant or
important event that affects the business of the Group.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers ("PWC") has resigned as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 10 August 2021 as the Company was unable to
reach an agreement with PWC on the audit fee for FY2021. BDO Limited
was appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect from 10 August
2021 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of PWC and to
hold office until the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company.

The financial statements for FY2021 have been audited by BDO Limited. A
resolution to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Wang Yao

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

55 - +852 2218 8288
{8558 : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GLOBAL INTERNATIONAL CREDIT GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Global
International Credit Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 79 to 159, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (the “HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

B R BETRE

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in Note 2.12, critical
estimates, judgements and errors in 4.1(a), disclosure of loans receivable in
Note 18 and interest receivables in Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's net loans and interest receivables
amounted to HK$774.1 million and HKS$5.6 million, respectively. Provision
for impairment assessments of loans and interest receivables under the
expected credit loss (“ECL") model amounted to HK$3.0 million and HK$0.1
million, respectively.

Management assessed the provision for impairment of loans and interest
receivables based on the estimation of ECL under a “three-stage” model.
In developing the loss allowance of loans and interest receivables,
management use judgement in making the assumptions about the
probability of default and loss given default with reference to the historical
delinquency ratio of loans portfolio, collateral values and current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors.

We have identified impairment assessment of loans and interest
receivables as a key audit matter due to the carrying amount of loans and
interest receivables is significant to the consolidated financial statements
and the management’s impairment assessment of loans and interest
receivables require the use of significant judgements and estimates.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment of
loans and interest receivables included:

understood, evaluated and validated the control over impairment
assessment of loans and interest receivables, which related to
management’s identification of events that triggered the significant
increase in credit risk of loans and interest receivables and events of
default;

carried out procedures, on a sample basis, to test the existence and
accuracy of the aging of loans and interest receivables as at the
reporting date;

checked the valuation methodology and approach adopted by
management in the ECL assessment;

evaluated the appropriateness of the key assumptions, such as
delinquency ratio and collateral values used in assessing the ECL
based on the historical data as well as market economic data; and

re-performed management’s calculation of loss allowance under ECL
model which grouped together all the receivables with similar risk
characteristics and based on the probability of default, exposure at
default and loss given default.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020, were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements on 30 March 2021.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman
Practising Certificate No.: P05057

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022

78

FHEA MM B mRNBEIIHRI N - B8
MAR - BREEE  URaHBBHRRE
B ERBRRZZHMEE -

PRERERNERAXBADNMBHENE
MAR - BENENEE  AEHEHY
BHEAERER - AN B EESEEET
BT~ BEEMBT - RPISF B R A
E2HEL -

BREMERIN RPREEEBABBRAT
ENEHE  BHHRHE  EXEAERSE
BIER MR T HA HABEHHEAEX
RFG o

BFEREBREEBABRRER - SARME
NEAEMBLMNEBERERER > AR
fYERE RS EBKARE T ERMBL
R AREMEMEIR - UREERNER
T - HEARR#EE o

HRaEEER/ABBBNERD - HFIHEEDR
LERUAYPAHMBRRNBAR/ER
MEKERESER - ROEXBEHRSED
WilE LRI - RIPAEEARTAFAFREE
BELER - RERRFELNBERT  RGE
BEMAERMBEPRBRXERERNAERR
BREEENARHE - RFURETEBERS T
BB R

R SRR GEETERAT
BEGAHE

%hxRB
WMEZBZERIR ¢+ PO5057

EF& —TE-—#=A=+AhAR



BREREESEEERLAT 2021 FR

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Revenue

Other income

Administrative expenses

Reversal of impairment losses — net

Finance costs

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

Earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company

- Basic and diluted
(expressed in HK cents per share)

B GRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ T -—F+-A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December
BZE+=-A=1t—HILLEE

WA

HUA

TR

RO EREE—F8R
BT RAR

BRA BB ADEF
ST

RATFERAEBEFR
BRRARERARE

AAREEAEESRET

—EANEE
(AEBIEILZ5)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

B eE
6

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —EFTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
85,981 103,277

4 1,331
(23,002) (24,449)
280 1,523
(355) (5,092)
62,908 76,590
(10,388) (12,425)
52,520 64,165
13.1 16.0
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B ORISR &

As at 31 December 2021 R=ZE=—F+=-A=+—H

As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Loans receivable

Deferred income tax assets
Deposits

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Loans receivable

Interest receivables

Repossessed assets

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Pledged deposit

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity
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Notes
Mk
BE
FRBEE
VI - S MR 14
FREEE 15(a)
FEWE K 18
BEFSREE 23
e 21
FRBEELAE
REEE
JEWE K 18
JEULF B 19
& B & E 20
TERFRIE - e R EMEU
FRIE 21
BERFER 22(b)
ReKREEEY 22(a)
REBEEHAE
BEHAE
e
AARFEEAEERES
& A 27
i 28
A

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
354 270
7,915 1,362
454,246 357,652
620 676
1,480 =
464,615 359,960
319,863 384,237
5,554 7,143
7,293 =
6,841 7315
18,962 7,434
82,330 132,835
440,843 538,964
905,458 898,924
4,000 4,000
851,461 837,341
855,461 841,341
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2021 R=ZE=—F+=-A=+—H

As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+—H

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETHF
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
iz FET FHEIT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liability FREESE
Lease liabilities HeEaE 15(a) 3,448 =
Total non-current liability FREBEBHERE 3,448 =
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FERT & A R B FE T FRIE 24 3,435 3,277
Tax payable FERTER IR 2,615 4,169
Bank loans RITERK 25 35,900 48,700
Lease liabilities HEEE 15(a) 4,599 1,437
Total current liabilities FEBEEAE 46,549 57,583
Total liabilities BEAHE 49,997 57,583
Total equity and liabilities ERkEEREE 905,458 898,924

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

LA GEEA RS AR S 2R e R BE P B R — GBI EE o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 159 were approved
for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2022 and were signed on
its behalf.

SR E7IEISIEMNAHMBHRRECAESS
RZFZ_F=ZA-+NABHAETIE A HN
TESERERESE -

Ms. Wang Yao TE &+
Director £%H

Ms. Yip Lee Ying EFi B 2+
Director £%F
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ - -—F+-A=+—HLEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAAEE AR
Share Share Capital Retained

capital premium reserve earnings Total

R Ko aE ERGE REEA st

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

MisE TR TR TAT THT TAT

Balance at 1 January 2020 R-B-EF-F-HMER 4,000 122,176 390,621 269,579 786,376
Total comprehensive EEGARALE

income for the year - - - 64,165 64,165

Transactions with owners BEEANRS
Final dividend relating to 2019 BHE-E-NEHRERE 13 - - - (9,200) (9,200)

Total transactions with owners, SEEANKZHEE
recognised directly in equity ~ EIERERER S . S (9.200) (9,200)

Balance at 31 December 2020 RA-Z_FF

TZA=t-HMER 4,000 122,176 390,621 324,544 841,341
Balance at 1 January 2021 R-E--E-F-BN&EH 4,000 122,176 390,621 324,544 841,341
Total comprehensive EEGARALE
income for the year - - - 52,520 52,520
Transactions with owners REFANRS
Final dividend relating to 2020 BE_Z_SEMKRERE 13 - - - (25,600) (25,600)
Special dividend relating t0 2020  BEA_ZE_ZEMNEHIKE = S S (12,800) (12,800)

Total transactions with owners, B ANTHE%EE -
recognised directly in equity HERERED - -

(38,400) (38,400)

Balance at 31 December 2021 RZB--&
+ZA=t-HBHES 4,000 122,176 390,621 338,664 855,461

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in it & i #Ezs S B & FEHEPBEM T —HHE o
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ T -—F+-A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December
BE+=—A=t+-ALEE

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETF
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
HiaE FET T
Cash flows from operating activities K& TEHEERE
Cash (used in)/ generated from operations &E& %% (FrA) FRELIRS 26(a) (59,198) 181,408
Loan interest received DU E A S 87,619 102,615
Interest paid BERFE (75) (4,877)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid, net ERBEENGEHFE (11,886) (29,147)
Net cash generated from KEEBFESR S FE
operating activities 16,460 249,999
Cash flows from investing activities REIZHHRELSRE
Purchase of property, plant and BEVE BEME&HE
equipment (352) (8)
Bank interest received BERIT R & 4 36
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEES(A)/ EEEE
investing activities THEE (348) 28
Cash flows from financing activities BEEFBHRERE
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings #8717 K& H i {& Zk Fr1S 2B 122,900 48,700
Repayment of bank and other borrowings 1;1%§ETT&E{TE{E K (135,700) (176,891)
Lease payments HEMNR (3,889) (4,281)
Increase in pledged bank deposits EHERRITFEFIE M (11,528) (5,721)
Dividend paid to the equity holders EfNEREREARE (38,400) (9,200)
Net cash used in financing activities mMEEEMTAREFR (66,617) (147,393)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReERBFSEEY
cash equivalents CRA),/ %8 (50,505) 102,634
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning  E¥IR & NIRELZEY
of the year 132,835 30,201
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRRENBEEY
of the year 82,330 132,835

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in it &M 4 REREARHHIE—HEE o
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Global International Credit Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 January 2014 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office is P.O. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the money lending business of providing property
mortgage loans and personal loans in Hong Kong.

The immediate holding company of the Company is Blossom Spring
Global Limited (“Blossom Spring”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). The directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) regard Blossom Spring as the ultimate holding company
of the Company.

The Company has its listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars ("HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of
Directors for issue on 29 March 2022.
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BREREESEEERLAT 2021 F3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The consolidated financial
statements are for the Group consisting of Global International Credit
Group Limited and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622 ("HKCO").

Historical cost convention
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared on a historical cost basis.

Relevant amendments to existing standards adopted
by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments to
standards for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing 1 January 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, interest rate benchmark
reform — phase 2

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid—19 related rent
concessions beyond 30 June 2021
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii) Relevant amendments to existing standards adopted
by the Group (Continued)
The amendments listed above did not have any impact
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

(iv) New and amended standards and interpretations not
yet adopted
Certain new and amended accounting standards
and interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 December 2021 reporting periods and
have not been early adopted by the Group. These new and
amended standards and interpretations are not expected
to have a material impact on the Group in the current
or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group (refer to Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

equity interests issued by the Group

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
Directors of the Company that make strategic decisions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS"), which is Global International Credit Group
Limited's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. They are deferred
in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and
qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable to
part of the net investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, within finance costs.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on these non-monetary items are recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
part of the fair value gain or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BAEHBEME(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 2.7 M%¥ - BEREE

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

— Furniture, fixtures and 4-5years
equipment
— Leasehold improvements Shorter of remaining lease

terms or useful lives

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflow which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

2.9 Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income (“OCl")
or through profit or loss); and

those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

92

(iii) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in other gains/(losses) and impairment gains or
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/(losses) in the
period in which it arises.

The Group's financial assets held during the year are all
debt instruments, including cash and cash equivalents,
pledge deposits, loans receivable, interest receivables,
deposit and other receivables which are all being classified
as to be measured at amortised cost.

2 BAEHBERBMEE)

29 REREMETBEE (F)

(iii)

A2 (&)
FﬁIE (#&)

?E/A?@u‘l‘)\ﬁﬁﬂ,m/\ﬂﬁl
7 RMRBEEERENARK

BHRERERHEESR
MEE BEEMNHIRN
BEABERES RAME N
o B ATFEG AEAM
el aRE o REEY
Bt AR 2 E K -
WEWRLER - N B
ARER W EENA
WP R RRIEERS
MEER  EAIREME
W 25 AR EY R A I a3k
BEEEBEEREFTIRE
BRI REMmkE (B
T§>ﬁgwu ZESREE
FEENMBWATERE
BR A ZORFF AR B UA o
PE U s M B R H Ath iR
w=,/ (BB 27 - fmE
BaAEaffzmBaRT
23| REIIEE o

BATFEFAER  TF
BEHRARIE A FER
AEERE KRS R ENE
EJAE R ER AR
FHE o BRIRAFERA
BamEBREMNEBEDER
EFEHJ%F?E?E = R

WMWK, (BE)F
iﬁlJ?%%‘TE :

AEERFARANEMEEY
REKTIE  BEHESMRESE
B o EBWER - BEER -
WA S - Be REMER
A O BRSREHEKAGE -



2

BREREESEEERLAT 2021 F3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
(iii) Measurement (Continued)

(iv)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCl, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI| are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value. Changes in
the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised
in other gains/(losses) in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as applicable.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit loss ("ECL") associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost.

The Group recognises a loss allowance for such losses at
each reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflect:

An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;

The time value of money; and

Reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
(iv) Impairment (Continued)
Note 3.1(b) provides more details of how the ECL
allowance is measured.

Loans receivable and interest receivables of the Group are
classified as debt investments carried at amortised cost
and are subject to the ECL model.

While cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposit and
deposits and other receivables are also subject to the
impairment assessment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

2.10 Derivative financial instruments

2.11

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
where the Company currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The Company has also entered into
arrangement that do not meet the criteria for offsetting
but still allow for the related amount to be set off in certain
circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.12 Loans and interest receivables
Loans and interest receivables are property mortgage loans
and personal loans granted to customers in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of loans and interest receivables are
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Loans and interest receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. The
gross carrying amount is written off (either partially or in full) to
the extent that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off are
recognised in “reversal of impairment losses — net” in profit or
loss.

2.13 Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand
and deposits held at call with banks.

2.15 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Other payables
Other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete the asset for its intended use or sales.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sales.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable or refundable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it
is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either based on
the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of
the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the entity
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(i) Investment allowances and similar tax incentives
Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim
special tax deductions for investments in qualifying
assets or in relation to qualifying expenditure. The Group
accounts for such allowances as tax credits, which means
that the allowance reduces income tax payable and
current tax expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised for
unclaimed tax credits that are carried forward as deferred
tax assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group has a defined contribution plan for its
employees. The Group pays contributions to trustee-
administered pension funds on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employment costs when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses, based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period. Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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(CONTINUED)

2.21 Provisions

100

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
management’s best estimate of expenditures required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BAEHBEME(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.22 Repossessed assets

There are two types of repossessed assets:

In the recovery of credit-impaired loans and interest receivables,
the Group takes ownership and control of the collateral assets
(e.g. through court proceedings) for release of the obligations
of the borrower. Repossessed assets are classified as non-
current assets held for sale when they meet the definition of
non-current assets held for sale and the recognition criteria
under HKFRS 5. Non-current assets held for sale are measured
at the lower of fair value less costs of disposal and the carrying
amount. The related loans and interest receivables together
with the impairment allowances are derecognised from
the consolidated statement of financial position upon the
recognition of these repossessed assets.

In situation where the Group obtains rights to rent or sell
of the underlying collateral assets in the recovery of credit-
impaired loans and interest receivables (e.g. through court
proceedings) but does not obtain ownership and control of
the underlying collateral assets, repossessed assets represent
these credit-impaired loans and interest receivables that are not
derecognised and continue to be measured at amortised cost
less provision for impairment under HKFRS 9.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of services in the ordinary course of the
Group's activities.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group's activities as described below.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised and accrued using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loan and receivables is recognised using the original
effective interest rate.

2.24 Leases

102

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-
lease components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.24 Leases (Continued)
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

104

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received; and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the
right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on

the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;

any initial direct costs; and

restoration costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s
useful life. While the Group revalues its land and buildings that
are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by the
Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.

2.25 Dividend distribution

Provisions is made for the amount of any dividend declared
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion
of the Group, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all the attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate. Note 6 provides further information on how the
Group accounts for government grants.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

106

The Group's activities expose it to various types of financial
risks: market risk (including cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's interest rate risk
arises from its loans receivable (Note 18), repossessed
assets (Note 20), pledged deposit and cash and cash
equivalents (Note 22) and bank loans (Note 25). Pledged
deposit, cash and cash equivalents and bank loans are
interest bearing at variable rates, and expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk, loans receivable and
repossessed assets are interest bearing at fixed rates and
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2021, if market interest rates had
been 1% higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profits would have been approximately
HK$546,000 higher/lower (2020: HK$765,000 higher/
lower), respectively.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 BEKRREE(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIERREE(E)
(b) Creditrisk (b) EEREE

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The Group's main income generating
activity is lending to customers and therefore credit risk is
a principal risk.

The Group's credit risk arises from pledged deposit, cash
and cash equivalents, loans receivable, interest receivables
and deposits and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to credit risk are
monitored on an ongoing basis. The carrying amounts of
these balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets which are stated
as follows:

EERBREEPERZE TR
ERTAREFMERAEEE
EREIERNER - REBEMNE
ZEWOEBRAFPRHEHEN -
AtEERBRSETZAR -

AEBEERRELADERT
R ReELRSEEY  BRE
K BUAB A RIS K HME
WHRE - EEEEHTEER
B RHEEEZREEERR -8
RS RAENASENL T2
BMEEMEBNSIAEERR :

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-HA=1+—HLEE

2021 2020

- ZETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Loans receivable (Note 18) FEWE R (FiEE18) 774,109 741,889

Interest receivables (Note 19) FEWFI B (PHEE19) 5,554 7,143
Deposits and other receivables e R E b FE W IR

(Note 21) (BtE21) 6,121 6,538

Pledged deposit (Note 22(b)) B E R (FIEE22(0)) 18,962 7434

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22(a)) BeKIREFEY
(P EE22(@a)) 82,330 132,835
887,076 895,839
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all of the Group's RZEZ—FRZZEZFF+=

A=1+—8 AREMmAZER
FHRAMBTREFNEBHOAE
TS - ARBEEEMREZ
ERBEEEEER -

pledged deposit and cash at bank are deposited in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong, which the
Group’s management believes are of high credit quality.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

108

(b)
(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk management

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for each of
its new and existing customers before standard payment
terms and conditions are offered. In particular, the Group
manages its credit risk by:

- Ensuring that the Group has appropriate credit
risk practices, including an effective system of
internal control, to consistently determine adequate
allowances in accordance with the Group’s stated
policies and procedures, HKFRS and relevant
supervisory guidance.

- Creating credit policies to protect the Group against
the identified risks including the requirements to
obtain collateral from borrowers, to perform robust
ongoing credit assessment of borrowers and to
continually monitor exposures against internal risk
limits.

- Limiting concentrations of exposure by type of asset,
counterparties, credit rating, geographic location
etc..

- Ifthereis no independent rating, risk control assesses
the credit quality of the customer, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and
other factors.

- Establishing a robust control framework regarding
the authorisation structure for the approval and
renewal of credit facilities.

- Developing and maintaining the Group’s processes
for measuring ECL including monitoring of credit risk,
incorporation of forward-looking information and the
method used to measure ECL.

- Ensuring that the Group has policies and procedures
in place to appropriately maintain and validate
models used to assess and measure ECL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI IR (R)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 BiIXEKREE(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiEREE(E)
(b) Creditrisk (Continued) (b) =EEE(E)
(i) Measurement of ECL (i) TERIZEEEE

The Group measures loss allowance under HKFRS 9 ECL
model. The measure of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e., the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is

credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The key inputs used for measuring ECL are:

Probability of default (PD);

Loss given default (LGD); and

Exposure at default (EAD)
These figures are generally derived from internally
developed statistical models and other historical data and

they are adjusted to reflect probability-weighted forward-
looking information.

AEEREBERSYBHRELERE
IRBHEEEEREAFEERE
Bt - BMEEBRZFEER
BB - BROBAXRREE(H
HEEEN BRIER)RED
R A - ZBAME R HOBX
RRE 2 HEIRBEAIE LR
FH B EBIREHBE -

—RmE  BRHREEEBRIRE
BHERNAREZABRORE
/;m;Eﬁ%Z!SEI?EHHH&HXZﬁﬁﬁiE
TREZHENEBEESE - Wik
IRTERISETE 2 BRFIRAEE -

MEBADRIESREE KM
BESE  BRIFREREESHE
EERE - AELER THEK
ATRIE SR E E 2 B AT

st
H o
A

BRI ERMEREERNERE
ABBEELRE

& 4R Bt O (EAD)
EE:%W@%‘;KQW%%\JEE@
FRAREMESESE B2
7758 DA = R 3 2R N4 O AT 14
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B ORISR M ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

110

(b)
(ii)

Credit risk (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Elements of the ECL models that are considered
accounting judgements and estimates include:

The Group's estimation of probabilities of default to
individual group;

The Group's criteria for assessing if there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and so allowances
for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime
ECL basis and the qualitative assessment;

Development of ECL models, including the various
formulas and the choice of inputs over determination
of the period over which the entity is exposed to
credit risk based on the behavioural life of the credit
exposures, loss given default and collateral recovery
of the credit exposures;

Determination of associations between
macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs,
such as delinquency ratios and collateral values, and
the effect on probabilities of default, exposures at
default and losses given default; and

Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic
scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive
the economic inputs into the ECL models.

It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review its
models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust
when necessary.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI IR (R)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 BEKRREE(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Creditrisk (Continued)
(ii)  Measurement of ECL (Continued)

3.0 B ERREE(E)
(b) =EEEE (&)
(i) FERIEERRE (&)

The Group categorises the credit quality of its loans
receivable and interest receivables according to 3 different
stages under the ECL model:

Stage 1: financial assets without significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition where loss
allowance is calculated based on 12-month ECL

Stage 2: financial assets with significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition where loss
allowance is calculated based on lifetime ECL

Stage 3: credit impaired assets where loss allowance
is calculated based on lifetime ECL

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

RERHAEEEEEL - AEH
R = AT FRE RS A E R
ERFSEEERETOR -

£ BRERE
15 & 2\ i 3 8 78 35 42 0 &9
TREE  EBBEBR
wmI2EARBMEREE

=
>

FEER  BRERE
EERRBZIE NN S B
BE EBEBREBRER
HEMEEBRHE

F-RER:FEEREE
E - EEBEEREREEH
BEMEEBEAE

1= BRI
ReHEEERRED B RHER
ARARIE NG - AREL RS
BTARNBEAHELEN 2R
B B ax & B T AL 16 HERR A 1
BEENZRAR - EETERN
h - AREEeERAEEELZ
TENEMEN  BHREEER
KBATEE B AR AN A B A
R ZAEIEER
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

112

(b) Creditrisk (Continued)

(i)  Measurement of ECL (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant decrease in credit
rating of the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtors’ ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Creditrisk (Continued)

(ii)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group monitors all financial assets that are subject
to impairment requirements to assess whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If there has been a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group will measure the loss allowance
based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.

The Group collects performance and default information
about its credit risk exposures and analyses all data
collected using statistical model and estimates the
remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are
expected to change over time. The factors taken into
account in this process include macro-economic data
such as delinquency rate on residential mortgage and
residential property price index. The Group generates a
‘base case’ scenario of the future direction of relevant
economic variables as well as a representative range of
other possible forecast scenarios. The Group then uses
these forecasts, which are probability-weighted, to adjust
its estimates of PDs.

The Group uses different criteria to determine whether
credit risk has increased significantly and the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group has monitoring procedures in place to make
sure that the criteria used to identify significant increases
in credit are effective, meaning that significant increase
in credit risk is identified before the exposure is defaulted
or when the asset becomes 30 days past due. The Group
performs periodic back-testing of its ratings to consider
whether the drivers of credit risk that led to default were
accurately reflected in the rating in a timely manner.
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B O F AR M ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Creditrisk (Continued)

114

(ii)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group has controls and procedures in place to identify
when the credit risk of an asset improves and the definition
of significant increase in credit risk is no longer met. When
this is the case the asset may move back to stage 1 from
stage 2, subject to payments being up to date and the
ability of the borrower to make future payments on time.

Default and credit-impaired

The Group considers that default has occurred when
the instrument is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate. In particular, the following qualitative
indicators are taken into account in determining the risk of
default occurring:

probable bankruptcy entered by the borrowers; and
death of the debtor.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group uses forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort in its assessment
of significant increase of credit risk as well as in its
measurement of ECL. The Group uses internal and external
information to generate a ‘base case’ scenario of future
forecast of relevant economic variables along with a
representative range of other possible forecast scenarios.
The external information used includes economic data
and forecasts published by governmental bodies and
monetary authorities.

The Group uses multiple scenarios to model the nonlinear
impact of assumptions about macroeconomic factors
on ECL. The Group applies probabilities to the forecast
scenarios identified.

In applying the forward-looking information and
probabilities to the forecast scenario identified for
assessing the expected credit losses as at 31 December
2021, the Group has taken into account the possible
impacts associated with the pandemic and the overall
change in economic environment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI IR (R)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 M¥EREREGE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 IBEKREE(E)
(b) Creditrisk (Continued) (b) EEEE(E)
(iii)  Credit risk exposure (iii) EE RO
The credit quality classification of loans receivable and $E¢§$%¥E%1§E%TE*§E '
their respective interest receivables and repossessed K%WE’\%K&E%S%WME‘%&
assets using the Group’s ECL model is set out in the table ?Hﬁgﬁ%ﬁ’q{;%%%ﬁiﬁ%@ﬂ

below:

As at 31 December 2021
R=B=-f+=ZA=+-H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL

F—EE
12{8 A ETRE F=RE
B4 ZHES 2HES
EEER =EER =EER Mgt
HK’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THER TR

Loans receivable FEWER 682,526 87,502 7,079 777,107
Impairment allowance THERE (1,311) (1,228) (459) (2,998)
Loans receivable JEWER

—netof impairment allowance ~ — IR IREEE 681,215 86,274 6,620 774,109
Interest receivables FEUFIS, 2,568 1,853 1,225 5,646
Impairment allowance THERE (10) (25) (57) (92)
Interest receivables FEWFI 2

—netof impairment allowance ~ — IR IREEE 2,558 1,828 1,168 5,554
Repossessed assets TIE B E - - 7,486 7,486
Impairment allowance BB - - (193) (193)
Repossessed assets mYEEE

—netof impairment allowance  — BRI EEE - - 7,293 7,293
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B ORISR M ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Creditrisk (Continued)
(i) ~ Credit risk exposure (Continued)

Loans receivable EER
Impairment allowance BB
Loans receivable EWE R

- netof impairment allowance ~ — R ERE

Interest receivables JEULFI S
Impairment allowance WERRE
Interest receivables JE WIS

- netof impairment allowance  — BRI ERE

116

3 MBEBREREGE)

3.1 IR EE(E)
(b) EEEE(E)
(i) EEREEMO (&

As at 31 December 2020
R-E-_FF+-_A=+—H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL
&R
1218 A FE B F=FEER
B ZHEH +H7EH
EEB#E FEEBR FEEBR Bt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT
641,510 76,714 27,087 745,311
(1,569) (1,104) (749) (3422)
639,941 75,610 26,338 741,889
2,326 2518 2,440 7,284
(17) (36) (88) (141)
2,309 2,482 2,352 7,143
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI IR (R)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 MEBEBRERE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIBEREE(E)
(b) Creditrisk (Continued) (b) EEER(E)
(iv) Sensitivity analysis (iv) BUEETEZHT
The allowance for credit losses is sensitive to the inputs %Eléﬂéiiﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\]ﬁiﬁﬁq%ﬁ%ﬂ
used in internally developed models, macroeconomic ERRARERM28 - AIiEt
variables in the forward-looking forecasts, economic TEANEBEEE S  KESR
scenario weighting and other factors considered when %EL/(&J@)EH%@@\}HH@EET%FE

applying management judgment. Changes in these inputs,
assumptions and judgments impact the assessment of

] R

% R Yl
significant increase in credit risk and the measurement of Rk BN K FE Bl = B R 1R 5
ECLs. EEARE -
The following table shows the impact on ECL allowance TREBTRBEER 22T E
on loans receivable, interest receivables and repossessed BT —FLN T _TF+—
assets as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 by changing A=1+—HBrEWRER - EUF]
individual input. E&%@&z@ﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁ;ﬁ%gﬁﬂé

Impact on ECL allowance on loans
receivable, interest receivables and

Change in input on ECL model repossessed assets
. HEREWRER  BUAEREREEEN
RHCEEBRERETNS BT AHEEBERERSRE
- Assuming a further 10% weighting added to - Decrease by HK$1,000 (2020: Decrease by
the probability of the optimistic scenario and a HK$1,000)
corresponding 10% weighting reduction in the - A 1,0008T(ZE T F : FH 41,000
base scenario BIT

- BRELEFEEOBEE DB 0%AEE KX
RERNIFIEAEE R O%E’ﬁgi

- Assuming a further 10% weighting added to - Increase by HK$779,000 (2020: Increase by
the probability of the pessimistic scenario and a HK$459,000)
corresponding 10% weighting reduction in the — IN779,0008 T (ZE =T F 4
base scenario 459,000/ 7T )

= R AR TE AR BE IR A BER 1 — 2P IE 11 0% R EE %
RENIBIEEER D 10%MEE

- Assuming no significant increase in credit risk - Decrease by HK$556,000 (2020: Decrease
since initial recognition was identified (i.e., all the by HK$414,000)
financial assets in Stage 2 moved to Stage 1) - R 556,0008TL(ZE2FF  F
 BRRE AR [ SR R (21 14,0008 70)

F_REBRNAECREEEBES —ER)

- Assuming the forecast collateral value increase by - Decrease by HK$507,000 (2020: Decrease
10% by HK$725,000)
- RRFEUBERREELTT10% - }%9507,0005%ﬁ(:§:§¢ LR
725,000/ 7C)
- Assuming the forecast collateral value decrease by - Increase by HK$610,000 (2020: Increase by
10% HK$859,000)
- fE’*“i‘E/EH%Ei?ﬁﬂuuﬁfﬁTli 10% - 38506100008 TT(—F -4 : 1
859,000/ 7T )
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B O F AR M ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

118

(b)
(v)

(vi)

Credit risk (Continued)

Collateral held as security

The Group holds collateral against certain loans receivable
in the form of mortgages over property. As at 31 December
2021, except for HK$ 1,230,000 gross loans receivable of the
Group were unsecured, all the gross loans receivable of the
Group were secured by mortgages over property. Majority
of the collateral are residential properties, commercial
properties and industrial properties and all of the collateral
are located in Hong Kong.

In the majority of cases, the Group grants loans with
a loan-to-value ratio of no more than 70% of the
value in the valuation report of the property for first
property mortgages, and where it is a subordinated
property mortgage, the aggregate lending (Group's loan
aggregated with all prior mortgage loans) of no more than
70% of the value of the underlying property. Approval
from a director of the subsidiary of the Company, a credit
manager and a credit officer is needed for loans granted
with a loan-to-value ratio that exceeds 70%. The directors
and senior management of the Company meet regularly
to review the loan-to-value ratio and when (1) there is a
significant change in the property price index in Hong
Kong; or (2) when loans are renewed. The directors and
senior management of the Company consider that the
credit risk arising from the loans and interest receivables is
significantly mitigated by the property held as collateral,
with reference to the market value of the property which
were valued by independent third party valuers as at the
end of the reporting period.

Concentration on credit risk

Revenue from the top five customers constituted
approximately 20.6% (2020: 19.4%) of the Group's revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2021. They accounted for
approximately 25.7% (2020: 25.7%) of the gross mortgage
loans receivable balances as at 31 December 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facility. Cash flow
forecasting is performed by management. The Group
monitors its rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom
on its undrawn borrowing facilities at all times so that
the Group does not breach borrowing limits on any
of its borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takes into
consideration the Group's debt financing plans, covenant
compliance, compliance with internal financial position
ratio targets and, if applicable external regulatory or legal

requirements.

The Group has undrawn borrowing facilities of
HK$14,100,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$301,300,000). Such undrawn borrowing facilities expire
within one year and are annual facilities subject to review

every year.

The Group's primary cash requirements, apart from
granting loans to customers, are for payment of bank and
other borrowings and payment for interest and operating

expenses.

3

B ORI IR (R)

PR EE ()

3.0 B ERRE(E)

(c)

MEEZER

BERPESRRERIREBD
EHARNEERERE  #i5
ARORERARESE - BER
EBRBAREEEEL - AREE
REHARERBE S HKOR
BIRR - AREREABRHRS
ENEERE - WNMEFAERR
HAREDERBREERTH L
R EAKETEEREEME
REENERRE - ZTRAEZE
BASENEGRENS - ek
BRI - ABH B RE
BROFEIRE - UR(ER )5
EBEEE SRR ERE T/ ©

R_E-_—F+_A=+—
B A&EENRERERRE
£514,100,0008 T( ZFE_FF :
301,300,000/ 7T ) ° #% K IR EUE
REER—FREH  ABEBARE
BERINTERE -

AEENTEZREFRL(ATP
RE BRI BRIRTT R EA
18 TR A R M B S & R A

Eon
A °
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting year to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

3

¥R EE ()

3.1

B%RERREE(E)

(c) HEBELEE(E)
TRAMBIBREFREGHNE
HANRGPESAKRENS
BABEEEMEEPER - KB
BRESBERANAMRARER

=
= °

As at 31 December
R+=A=+—8H

Within one year —FR

Other payables (Note 24) At pE A FRIA (Kt 5E24)
Bank loans (Note 25) RITER(PMIFE25)
Lease liabilities (Note 15(a)) HEBGEFE15E)
One to two years —EmF

Lease liabilities (Note 15(a)) HEBGEME15E)

3.2 Capital management

120

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can
continue to provide returns to the shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debts.

3.2

2021 2020

—E-—F —E_TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAET

742 792

35,900 48,700

4,599 1,437

3,448 ~

44,689 50,929
EXEE

AEEEREANBBERREESE
RRERREN - BUSHBEMAEE SR
PR A0 3R 30 2 H A B R AR REA T ER 4
Mz ARERRENERREB AR
EEARA

REFIFHBEARRE  AEEXRE
HABESINTERRAOBESHE - MR
BEEXR  BTHRMOIHEEEN
RARETS
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B ORI IR (R)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 BMXERKMERE(E)
3.2 Capital management (Continued) 3.2 EXREE(E)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘bank loans’
and ‘lease liabilities’ as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position) less pledged deposit and cash and cash
equivalents. Total equity is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group's
strategy remains unchanged, which was to maintain the gearing
ratio within 100%, and the gearing ratios and net cash/debt
position of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as
follows:

AEENEEBBLRAELEERE
AR o R EIREFS I F MR AR A BT
AE - BB FHIRERAE(BES
HHBRARARE [RITER R
[HEEaEREEREFTRNRE X
ReEEWMHE - BRBHIRE 0+
BIRRKFATE [ 5T E - A5E
RIS R T  EEABLRER
FE100% AR MASEER T = —
FR-_TE-TFF+-_A=+—HWHE
ERRRERFRE MEBAR L FEL
T e

As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H

Bank loans (Note 25) RITER(HI7E25)

Lease liabilities (Note 15(a)) HEBE(MT150)

Less: pledged deposit and cash and cash 3 : EIEIFFRER S KRS
equivalents (Note 22) ZEY(H7H22)

Net cash e

Total equity RS EER

Gearing ratio BEABHE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
35,900 48,700
8,047 1,437
(101,292) (140,269)
(57,345) (90,132)
855,461 841,341

Not applicable Not applicable
TEA A iE
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4 CRITICAL ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ERRORS 4

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group'’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates
(a) Estimation of recoverability of loans and other

receivables

The Group assesses provision for impairment of loans
and other receivables based on an estimate of the
recoverability of these receivables. Provisions are applied
to loans and other receivables where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of impairment of loans
and other receivables under HKFRS 9 requires the use
of estimates and judgement. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of receivables and provision
for impairment losses in the period in which such estimate
has been changed.

The Group uses judgement in making assumptions and
selecting the inputs to its ECL calculation, based on the
Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in Note 3.1.

(b) Critical judgement in income tax
The Group is subject to income tax in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.
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BAgRMAET - FIETREERR

REVTBEHRRFBEEAGFEF - BERR
& ZEEFRIEAERBER - EHEE
ERASE @5 BERRIHE2(ELH
% o

fEr RAVER T RER G - HIABELRK
HEAXAER  SBREUTRTERR
MBARARETEBERATRRBR/AEZR
KEM 2 TEH -

4.1 BREEEE

(a) EFREMEWETWKEEZ
185t
AEBIREE R H b B UK
EOEIN IR IEEfﬁqu%%EZ%JEHQm
HRRERE - EBSHHIBNR
LR E RN E A W R IE A
FRARMBEW O R - BIFE A BEHE
*ETE«%C“%@M@& 22 B 25 9 5% FE
RE KR H A W GRIB R (B AE
ﬁﬁfﬁ.ﬁr&%\J%ﬁ MTEERA R &
UIEErE - BBz Ser e
B BT 2 HIR fE W SR TE KR
BEERERAE -

REREHMKR - AEEREBEEE
SRERHE - BREFTILA R ATHE 1
Fﬁ.ﬁr LL%IJ%MEtHM—rT““
BREABHEEERFENGA
BE - BREREAFENRAR
GRS PN ERE

(b) F7SH 95 H B
REBREBBEBANNGEH - B
ENERBEERAELERH
i - ZIR 5 M ERETIRE
EXAEAME - REERBEMBE
AR A BB BN AR
u+$ﬂﬁ§u/p\ﬁ1 % EEEN

RBBABREN PSS EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, all of the
Group's revenue was generated from the money lending business
of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in Hong
Kong. Revenue represents interest income earned from loans offered
to the Group's customers. Information reported to the Group's chief
operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of the Group’s performance, is focused on the
operating results of the Group as a whole as the Group's resources
are integrated and no discrete financial information is available.
Accordingly, no segment analysis or information about the Group's
products and services are presented.

All of the Group's revenue from external customers and assets was
generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue represents the interest income earned from the money
lending business of providing property mortgage loans and personal
loans in Hong Kong. Revenue and other income recognised during
the year are as follows:

B ORI IR (R)

7 #RE

REBEE_FT_—FR_Z_ZFF+_A
=t+—RLFE  AEEHNKRAEEER
BREREMERBEREMABERNER
15 - WARBR TAKBE RPN E R
REVEOF SN - RAKEE RS B K&
BEms  2EBWTAEEETELLERK
ENENETRERAAKREERANTH
ESBIUMBERBRATHAREERK

BEE At YEZJARAEEER
BRI DR DT EHL o
EAEjZ:l:_“__ﬁ)i_?_?i"f’ ﬁ

=t+—RLFE  AEEXEIIFEFH
FBERAREEAELR RUREEE
W o

WA R E U A
WA BREBRE N ERIBERRIA

B E KRB F SUA - REF
W HERHA R B ALT

Year ended 31 December
BZE+-_HA=1t—HLFE

Revenue WA
Interest income A EHA

Other income Habg A
Bank interest income RITH B A
Government grants (Note (a)) BT B (B 3E ()

(@) Being wage subsidies provided by the Hong Kong Government
under the Employment Support Scheme during the year ended
31 December 2020. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attaching to these grants.

)

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
85,981 103,277

4 36

= 1,295

4 1,331

@ MBE—ZF-_TF+_A=+—HL
FE - BRBRTRE [RUE FHEE
HETEME - ZFMPBERENK
R R B RAFIR
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7 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 7 1THEX
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=+—HLEE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-TF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#&x THT
Employee benefit expenses EERFFRX
(including directors’ emoluments) (Note 9)  (BIEZEHEM) (Fizr9) 10,734 11,310
Advertising and marketing expenses BEE RIS HER 4,156 4,843
Legal and professional fees FENEEER 1,532 1,045
Auditor’s remuneration ZE BN &
— Audit services — FAZARTE 700 800
— Non-audit services — ETZIRTE 100 263
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERRETE(MEE14)
equipment (Note 14) 268 424
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEETE(HE150)
(Note 15(b)) 3,666 4,026
Other administrative expenses Hib 1T 1,846 1,738
23,002 24,449
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REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES - NET 8 REIREEE -5

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-ZE-_—S+-H=t—HLEE

Lifetime Lifetime

expected expected

12 months creditloss credit loss
expected not credit credit
credit loss impaired impaired

(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)

FEERE EERE

NREAEYE HZHEH NWE2HEB

FEFE FEEE FEFE
(F—FER) (E=ER) (F=KR) #mst
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET THET FHET

Net reversal of/(charge for) U E FORME TG

provisions for impairment BERRE, (FX)

assessment on loans receivable F R 258 (124) 201 335
Net reversal of provisions for FEUR BB ERTAS

impairment assessment on B EREDFRE

interest receivables 7 11 12 30
Provisions for impairment #eU 8] & ERUE

assessment on repossessed P B

assets - = (85) (85)

265 (113) 128 280

Year ended 31 December 2020
BEZ-TF+_A=+—HIFE

Lifetime Lifetime
expected expected
12 months credit loss credit loss
expected not credit credit
credit loss impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
FEERE EERE
121 A 78 &1 | # 2 BT HA
EEEE 5E8E EEEE
(BB (B-RR) (B=EE) Gt
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FAT FABT FAT FAT
Net reversal of/(charge for) EREFORER G
provisions for impairment B gL ()
assessment on loans receivable FEE 2,197 (847) 191 1,541
Net reversal of/(charge for) RIS A BURE FE
provisions for impairment BERE(FX)
assessment on interest FEE
receivables 24 (28) (14) (18)

2,221 (875) 177 1,523
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

9

BEEMNAX (BEESHM)

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-HA=1+—HLEE

¥ - @A R
RIRE KA — FE RS
(BfaE)

Salaries, benefits and bonus
Pension costs — defined contribution plans
(Note)

Note: The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of
Hong Kong. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
in Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5% of their gross earnings with a
ceiling of HK$1,500 per month to the MPF Scheme. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future year.

Contributions totalling HK$53,000 (2020: HK$58,000) were payable to the fund at
the year-end date.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group include 3 (2020: 4) directors for the year ended 31 December
2021, whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note
31. The emoluments payable to the remaining 2 (2020: 1) individual
for the year ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE_TF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET THT
10,424 10,976
310 334
10,734 11,310
Mz : AEBEBREESGREIE AR BIE S E
BEIEATESFEN([RESETE ) - BiRA
EestaRa  EARIREESSHARE
BFRFER 5% (T A R A1,500/8 7T ) M8 &
SFHEER - B SRR AEBWET
EARMFTEIEL RN - MES R
A RER DR R SRR o
HEFHAEMNESHRE £ 45300087
ZE-FF : 580008 7T) °
TEEETFMAL
BHE_Z-—F+_HA=1T—HILFE "
REBRNEEESFTHATEEIR(ZE

TEF4B)EF  HFME RBRRM
HIPIRAMTA - BE-_T_—F+_A
=t—HUEEFE  BETHT2R(Z
TE 1R)BRESFTHALTHOFHNET

=

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=t+—HLFE

Salaries, benefits and other remuneration
Discretionary bonus
Pension costs — defined contribution plans

e @A REMBME
BB IEAL
RRERA — R ERKETE
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2021 2020
—E-—F T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
1,587 542
102 100

36 18

1,725 660
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

The above individuals with the highest emoluments are within the
following bands:

B ORI IR (R)

9 EERARX(BEESHM) (H)

PlsSHEMATOFHERLNT

Year ended 31 December
BE+=-HA=1t—HILEEE

2021 2020
B ZETF

Emoluments bands M E

HK$500,001 — HK$ 1,000,000 500,001/ 7T £ 1,000,00078 7T 2 1

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no emoluments
had been paid by the Group to the directors or the five highest paid
individuals referred above as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as a compensation for loss of office.

FINANCE COSTS

BE_T_—FR_ZF_FTF+_A
“t+—HLFE  AEEVEAESFH L
R B = B A S RHE T R B R R N
ASIARSEBIR Y SR A E R RER A (E -

10 BAFE A

Year ended 31 December
BEt+-A=1+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E=-—F T
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#&T FAT
Finance costs B 7 B R
Interest expenses on secured bank loans EERRITERFERZ 75 512
Interest expenses on secured BEPEAMERF M
other borrowings - 4,365
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBEMNEFMEZ 280 215
355 5,092
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 REHAX
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for at the rate of 8.25% BB —tFRBUERT) (B75%) &6l

for the first HK$2,000,000 estimated assessable profits and 16.5%
for estimated assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 for the group
entity qualified for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime introduced
pursuant to the Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017. For
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for at a flat rate of
16.5%.

BRSIAFESHBRERRS - A EREER
B B2 /Y B 2,000,000 JT G 51 1 2R B 0 Fl 4%
8.25%1E M - 2,000,00078 7T LA _E B fE =t
JERBFEFIR 165%1EHBE - MARKS
MAGFEHERNEBRERMS 8
FISFATT T 16.5%8) 55— T RAEH B -

127



Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORISR M ()

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 11 RMEHMAXZ(E)
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated statement of SFFAEHEERERNFSEH &8R-

comprehensive income represents:

Year ended 31 December
BEt+-A=1+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FAT
Current tax RVER# I8
— Current tax on profits for the year —FRENEAREH 10,352 12,260
— Over-provision in prior years — T EERE (20) (20)
Total current tax BIHATR IE 48 KA 10,332 12,240
Deferred tax (Note 23) EERTE (PH3E23)
— Decrease in deferred income —IRERBHEERD
tax assets 56 185
Income tax expense FEFFAX 10,388 12,425
The tax on the Group'’s profit before income tax differs from the I2 7R £ B B T B B B A T & ey F 1 B
theoretical amount that would arise as follows: BE%EAE - IWEH O ¢
Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=+—-HLEE
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before income tax B A 155 BR ) 62,908 76,590
Calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of &% & i 1851 55 £ 8.25%816.5%
8.25% or 16.5% (2020: 8.25% or 16.5%) FE(ZZEFF 1 825%%K
16.5%) 10,215 12,472
Over-provision in prior years B (20) (20)
Income not subject to taxation BAERTUA - (220)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes R R 201 214
Tax effect of temporary difference not REREREZBOPRGTE
recognised 3 1
Utilisation of previously unrecognised BRI AR ERBIIBBER
tax losses now recognised to reduce R EN RN EATIIR
current tax (11) (22)
Income tax expense FEFRRX 10,388 12,425

128



11

BREREESEEERLAT 2021 F3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “IRD”") has issued enquiries and a letter to
the Company disagreeing with certain interest income received by
the Company during the years of assessment 2015/16 and 2016/17
being claimed as capital and offshore in nature.

Notices of assessment of HK$129,000 and HK$3,058,000 were issued
by IRD to the Company for the years of assessment 2015/16 and
2016/17, respectively. The Company has lodged objection against
the tax assessments with IRD considering that valid technical
grounds are available in claiming the said interest income as capital
and offshore in nature. IRD agreed to hold over the tax claim
subject to the purchase of tax reserve certificates of HK$3,187,000,
which was purchased by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2018. During the year ended 31 December 2020, a notice
of assessment of HK$1,310,000 was further issued by the IRD to the
Company for the year of assessment 2017/18 on the said interest
income. The Company has lodged an objection against the tax
assessment 2017/18 with the IRD on the same technical grounds and
has purchased an additional tax reserve certificate of HK$1,310,000
for holding over the tax claim during the year ended 31 December
2020. As at 31 December 2021, the case is referred to the Appeals
Section for the Commissioner’s determination.

As the ultimate outcome cannot presently be determined and
with a view of probable outflow with resources, a tax provision of
HKS$4,522,000 in respect of the tax enquiries has been provided in
prior year and the Company considered that adequate provision has
been made in the Group's consolidated financial statements.

B ORI IR (R)

11 FEHRFAX(E)

HE_ZT—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE
FERKER(IHRBH]) MAREHEL
BERRET  RRTRAEBEARAR-E
—B/—RERZE—R/ L EFIBRF
EWEZ & T B WA R RBER R BEF
e -

RERRAAARR_-_ZE—0 — ~Fk_
TN/ tEFBREERLIRBNE
B2 5 Bl £ 129,0007 7T K& 3,058,000 JT °
RNEEBEFERREMIZEERE AR
FEWABEARARBEEEERARIERDIE
HRERIBFR - REHRAEHEBIER
R - AIIRZABE R $3,187,0008 7T &
NAEREE_ZE—NFF+_A=+—
ALEEABE HE_ZT_TF+=
A=+—HLEFE  BHEBHEELRF
BWAN#E—FRAARRAR=ZZ—+ — N\
FRRFEZHTHBALEA1,310,000
BIT o AR EIRIERBATIEE AR B IR
PR T —+ — \FOFRBEFH - M
AARERBE-_Z_ZEF+_A=+—
AIEFEBEREIMET 1,310,000/ 7T -
NEERERR -RZT=—F+=A
=+—H ZEREEN T LFEERES
RTE °

AR RRERARNREETRERIFE
BINRE AT REE - R E—FE R ARRIE
& E AR 4,522,000 7T © BARQ
ARABERAEENSHMBEREREDT
TR o
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

12

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$52,520,000 (2020:

HK$64,165,000) by the weighted average

number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year of 400,000,000 (2020: 400,000,000

shares).

Profit attributable to owners of the
Company (HK$'000)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue for basic earnings

per share ('000)

Basic earnings per share (HK cents)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

ZAYNCIE? 2SN it
(F&7T)

BREF

(a) BREAXREF
EREABFZADRES AERG
i 152,520,000 L (ZF ZFF ¢
64,165,000 70 ) (R A F A B 1T E @
% 0 4 S 59 £2400,000,000 % (= Z =
ZT4F : 400,000,0000% )5+ & o

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-HA=1+—HLEE

SETEESRERB N AN
ERITE AR INEFIIH

(TR

FREAREFN B

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding

during the years ended 31 December 2021

and 2020 and hence

the diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings

per share.

13 DIVIDEND

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 3
HK5.3 cents per share, totalling HK$21,200,000

13

1 December 2021 of
is to be proposed at

the upcoming annual general meeting. These consolidated financial

statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

Proposed final dividend of HK5.3 cents
(2020: HK6.4 cents) per share

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
52,520 64,165
400,000 400,000
13.1 16.0

(b) EREERR
BE_ T -_—FK-_F-_ZTF+_A
=+—RHIEFE  BEETEINER
BEEENTRR  BUESREER
FERFRRERZFIFER o

Eﬁ 1%\

ARBEREERFBFAS FRZIRM
BE-_ET-—&+-RA=1+—RHIEEW
REARE B & %5378 1L (& ££21,200,0007%8
T0) © M EA GBS AR A A BRI R A
BEE o

BRI R A8 B A 37 L

“EFTF 6 48(l)

Proposed special dividend of Nil cents (2020: #EzZH R 4F IR EBRZHW (=

HK$3.2 cents) per share

130

T T 327)

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
21,200 25,600

= 12,800
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B ORI IR (R)

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 ¥ - MERRZE
Furniture,
fixtures and Leasehold
equipment improvements Total
HEWMEEE #at
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FAxT FAExT AT
As at 31 December 2019 R=ZZB—hF
+=A=+-—H
Cost AR 2,805 2,793 5,598
Accumulated depreciation and 2 ERRE
impairment (2,177) (2,735) (4912)
Net carrying amount BREFHE 628 58 686
Year ended 31 December 2020 B2
T=ZA=+—HLEFE
Opening net carrying amount FEYREFE 628 58 686
Additions NE 8 - 8
Depreciation b (366) (58) (424)
Closing net carrying amount FREEEFE 270 = 270
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-ZHF
+=ZA=+—H
Cost DN 2,811 2,793 5,604
Accumulated depreciation and ZEHERRE
impairment (2,541) (2,793) (5,334)
Net carrying amount BRE R E 270 - 270
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-_—F
+TZA=t+—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FHEmFEE 270 = 270
Additions NE 352 - 352
Depreciation E (268) - (268)
Closing net carrying amount FRIREFEE 354 - 354
As at 31 December 2021 R—B=-—F
+=A=+-—H
Cost AR 3,156 2,793 5,949
Accumulated depreciation and ZETERRE
impairment (2,802) (2,793) (5,595)
Net carrying amount BRE R E 354 = 354
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15 LEASES 15 H8
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (@) REBEBARRRAEZHIRR
of financial position 15
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the AEHBMRARRBIATEEREER
following amounts relating to leases: FRIA

As at 31 December

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Land and buildings T RAEF 7,915 1,362
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current ED 4,599 1,437
Non-current FERED 3,448 =
8,047 1,437
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 BE_ZT_—F+_A=+—HILF
December 2021 were HK$10,219,000 (2020: Nil). ERERMAEEER02190008TT

(ZF=FF: TAT) °

132



BREREESEEERLAT 2021 F3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15 LEASES (CONTINUED)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement

(c)

of comprehensive income
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows
the following amounts relating to leases:

B ORI IR (R)

15 HE(&)
(b) REHHRE KR RABERHRK

15
EHEERARERATABEENRK
15 :

Year ended 31 December
BZE+t=-A=1+—HILEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZTTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FAT
3,666 4,026

280 215

Depreciation charge of FRAEEENEER
right-of-use assets
Land and buildings T REF

Interest expense (included in
finance cost)

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31
December 2021 was HK$3,889,000 (2020: HK$4,281,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases an office and a warehouse. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed periods of 2 to 3 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessors. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

MEFX GTABERA)

Notes

B eE

(c)

B2 Z-_—F+-_RA=+—HIF
€ HEMIRS R 42%E 53,889,000
BIL(Z T -F4 : 4281,000/7T) °

AEBENHEEEBRE AR
I
FEBBERAERAE - HEAH
— R E3F REEHR T -

B ERNEEER -  BESEET
R R AT - R AR ENHE
BETHERERI - HEHZE TG
EMEMARE HEEETSAR
fERPELR

133



Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

CXCid

16 S

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

P 7% S B ot (48D

UBSIDIARIES

2021:

134

Directly owned:

ERER:

GIC (Overseas) Holdings Limited (‘GIC

Overseas’)
GIC (Overseas) Holdings Limited
(TGIC Overseas])

GITI (Overseas) Limited
("GITI (Overseas)")
GITI (Overseas) Limited

(TGITI (Overseas) )

Indirectly owned:

BEEE
Global International Credit Limited

(‘GIC")

RIKEEARLR(RRER])

Global International Finance Limited

("GIF")

RIREFRARDA(REER)

Global Property Finance Limited
("GPF")

REMEZIEER AR ([GPF))

Place of incorporation and
kind of legal entity

MR R R
HRERER

British Virgin Islands limited
liability company
ABRAHBAERAT

British Virgin Islands limited
liability company
RBRAHBERAF

Hong Kong limited liability
company

BEARAA

Hong Kong limited liability
company

BBERAF

Hong Kong limited liability

company

BEARAR

16 KiEAE

DB AFTIE

Principal activities and
place of operation

FTEXRBREELY

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBREEK

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBREEK

Money lending business of
providing property mortgage
loans and personal loans in
Hong Kong

REBRENFLBEH L
MABFHERRS

Money lending business of
providing property mortgage
loans in Hong Kong

REEREYFRBERD
EREH

Money lending business of
providing personal loans in
Hong Kong

REBREILASTNETES

Share capital

ATRR-_Z_—F+_A=+—HoE

Group's equity interest

2 FREORARR

2021
—E--F

201 ordinary shares
USSnil

0REBR
XL

100%

101 ordinary shares
USSnil

101 AR
XN

100%

10,100 ordinary shares
HK$391,000,000

100%
0,008 37 A%
39,000@00&%75

1,000 ordinary shares
HK$1,000
100%
1,000 & B
1,000

10,000 ordinary shares
HK$10,000
100%
10,000/ & A%
10,000%87T

2020

—?—7¢

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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B ORI IR (R)

17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 17 ZEHETHNEMIA
As at 31 December
WR+=B=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-EF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#&x FHT
Financial assets SMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost IR AR R S R E E
Loans receivable (Note 18) ERE R (HIFE18) 774,109 741,889
Interest receivables (Note 19) FEMH B (HI5E19) 5,554 7,143
Repossessed assets (Note 20) gl e & 2 (fFFE20) 7,293 =
Deposits and other receivables (Note 21) e REMERERTE (B E21) 6,121 6,538
Pledged deposit (Note 22(b)) B HERFR(FEE22(0)) 18,962 7,434
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 22(a)) ReERBeEEYM(ME226) 82,330 132,835
Total st 894,369 895,839
Financial liabilities =K
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEK AN SR B E
Other payables (Note 24) M E A5 3B (B 3E24) 742 792
Bank loans (Note 25) RITE R (FEE25) 35,900 48,700
Lease liabilities (Note 15(a)) HEBEFFEI5E) 8,047 1,437
Total st 44,689 50,929
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18 LOANS RECEIVABLE 18 BRER
As at 31 December
Rt+t=B=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loans receivable FEUE K 777,107 745,311
Less: Ve
Provision for impairment assessment BN E FURE R
of loans receivable
- Stage 1 —E R (1,311) (1,569)
- Stage 2 —FE[RER (1,228) (1,104)
- Stage 3 — =R (459) (749)
(2,998) (3422)
Loans receivable, net of provision kR EROERER 774,109 741,889
Less: non-current portion B IERENEL D (454,246) (357,652)
Current portion mENER 319,863 384,237
The Group’s loans receivable, which arise from the money lending AEBREBIREVERIEERLAAE
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in VB R ETSFTE £ A B E A LA
Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. B -
Except for loans receivable of HK$1,230,000 (2020: HK$1,178,000), Br A B1,230008 T (2T ZFF
which are unsecured, interest-bearing and are repayable with fixed 1,178,000/ 7T ) AU MR - 5T 2 WA E
terms agreed with customers, all loans receivable are secured by EEFZEMNETHRAEENERER
collaterals provided by customers, interest-bearing and are repayable SN TERWE AR PR A IR G E
with fixed terms agreed with the customers. The maximum exposure AT SR ARER PR EE
to credit risk at each of the reporting dates is the carrying amount of RAEE RN EREEHMARNSEAE
the loans receivable mentioned above. ERBA XAl EKRESRRAEE -
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B ORI IR (R)

18 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 18 BWER(E)
As at 31 December 2021, loans receivable of HK$74,542,000 (2020: RZE-_—F+-_A=+—"H  BH
HK$59,421,000) were past due but not credit-impaired. As at 31 74,542,000/ 70 ( ZF ZF 4 : 59,421,000/
December 2021, all overdue loans receivable were secured property TT)MEWERESBE N K EERE -
mortgage loans. These were related to a number of third-party R-E-_—F+-_HA=+—8 " 2328
customers and that the directors of the Company are of the opinion HEWERADEFAMERBER - 25
that these overdue loans receivable were fully secured by the ERNZEABYE=ATEAHE  ~AQT
collateral. Accordingly, these balances are still considered to be fully EERAZSAHRERERHIRFEREH
recoverable. BR - Al ZERBINEE AR 2HK
@] o

The aging analysis of these past due but not impaired loans ZEC B EE W RBERNERERNERR
receivable is as follows: AW :

As at 31 December

R+t=B=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0-30 days 0Z230H 1,171 7,684
31-90 days 31290H 9,085 5,910
Over 90 days @O0 H 64,286 45,827
74,542 59,421
Further analysis on credit quality of loans receivable are set out in EUWEZRNEEEEZNE — SO TERH

Note 3.1(b). $3.1(b) ©
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18 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 18 BRER(E)
Movements on the Group’s impairment of loans receivable are as AEBREWEZRESZSNT :
follows:

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E--F+-A=1+-HLEE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—RR ERR FZRR gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEx TR TR
Asat 1 January 2021 R-T-—%—f—§ 1,569 1,104 749 3,422
New loans originated REMER 719 1,007 - 1,726
Loans recovered or repaid FREREHEENER
during the year (419) (943) (85) (1,447)
Provisions transferred to repossessed assets 4 & Z &Y A B EH
during the year s - - (89) (89)
Transfer to 12-month expected BRENEABSEE
credit loss (Stage 1) BRE-ER) 31 (31) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected BRE2BRAEEHR
credit loss not creditimpaired (Stage2)  (REEWE) (E=KE) (25) 25 - -
Transfer to lifetime expected credit BRE2BRAEEHR
loss credit impaired (Stage 3) (BIEERE)(F=RER) - - = =
Total transfer between stages BB NES A 6 (6) = =
Impact on year end expected credit loss ilﬂ’\ﬁ%ﬁxﬁ% B ERTEE
of exposures transferred between EERRNYE
stages during the year (31) (5) = (36)
Movements due to changes in creditrisk ~ EEEREE o/ BHEH) (533) 71 (116) (578)
As at 31 December 2021 W-E--F+=-H=+-H 1,311 1,228 459 2,998
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18 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 18 EWWER (&)

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T_TF+_R=1—-BItFE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
F—IHE ERR E=MBE
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T THT T THT
As at 1 January 2020 R-Z-FF—H—H 3,766 257 940 4,963
New loans originated REMER 21 - - 21
Loans recovered or repaid FREREHEENER
during the year (1,250) (36) (462) (1,748)
Transfer to 12-month expected BRENEABRSEE
credit loss (Stage 1) EE(E-KE) 22 (22) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected BRE2BRAEEER
credit loss not creditimpaired (Stage2)  (REEWIE) (E=KE) (296) 29 - =
Transfer to lifetime expected credit BRE2BRAEEER
loss credit impaired (Stage 3) (BEEERE)(E=RE&) (119) (129) 248 =
Total transfer between stages EREBAER B (393) 145 248 =
Impact on year end expected credit loss & A&k ERER LR F K TEH
of exposures transferred between FEBERNTE
stages during the year 22) 807 23 808
Movements due to changes in creditrisk ~ EEEREE o/ BHEH) (553) (69) - (622)
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-EF+=-HA=+—H 1,569 1,104 749 3422
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18 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 18 BWERK(E)

In general, loans receivable are considered as default when the loans
receivable or its related installments are overdue by over 90 days.
As at 31 December 2021, loans receivable of HK$7,079,000 (2020:
HK$27,087,000) was default under lifetime ECL and a provision of
HK$459,000 (2020: HK$749,000) was provided.

For loans that are not credit-impaired without significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition “Stage 1”, ECL is measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default
events possible within the next 12 months. If a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition is identified (“Stage 2") but not
yet deemed to be credit impaired, ECL is measured based on lifetime
ECL. In general, when loans receivable or its related installments are
overdue by 30 days, there are significant increase in credit risk. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, total provision of HK$134,000
(2020: HK$1,350,000) under Stage 1 and Stage 2 was released to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income based on
assessment from ECL model.

A maturity profile of the loans receivable as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the maturity date, net of provision, is as
follows:

—EmE - MENE RS EERE S BAR
BEEIEOX - AIEWRE KR AEL -
EA—?@——¢+—H_+ B EWRER
7,079,000 7T (ZZ = F 4 : 27,087,000/
TT)REHREHREEBETEEN - B2
sH4R459, ooo,%m(_%@_ TLE 1 749,00078
T ) K

HRIEEERELBVARBERBUREE
[B\BR N FE R E AN ([ B —FEER ) M E R
TEHEEBEIES R AR 28 A R Al f 5
EREHNEHSI RN HESEEEEN
LLBlET 2 - W B VIR EREE#NEER
REEEM(IEF_BREDELRRAE
EERE  AEREEERREHESE
EBEFE - —MmE - MERERSHE
B ZE 30K - EERKRE KNIE
Ehne-HE-ZT-_—F+=-A=1+—HIL
FE - BREBHEEBEENNTG - £
—PEER R 2 P ER M) AR 455 134,000 7T
(ZZE-FF :1350,000/870) B NA 45
AR TP M o

RIBZHAE - BRERCNREE) RRE
HIRE B MERMT

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H

Current BIVEA
Over 1 year and within 5 years iR —F R AFUARN
Over 5 years iR

As at 31 December 2021, loans receivable with carrying amount of
HK$94,751,000 (2020: HKS115,699,000) were charged to a bank to
secure a bank loan facility granted to a subsidiary of the Company
(Note 25).
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2021 2020

=—f —ZT_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FHET
319,863 384,237
275,423 172,156
178,823 185,496
774,109 741,889

WZZ=-_—F+=-A=+—8 KEEA
94,751,000 7L ( ZE ZFF : 115,699,000
BILOMEREREEH FRT - LAR
nal—EEARERBITERRE (EIE
R(PFEE25) »
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18 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

19

As at 31 December 2020, certain properties mortgaged to a
subsidiary of the Company for loans granted to its respective
customers were pledged to an independent third party licensed
money lender to secure a loan facility granted to a subsidiary of the
Company. These properties, with market value of HK$238,880,000,
were mortgaged to the Group for securing loans receivable of
HK$88,923,000. Such loan facility was expired on 31 December 2021.

INTEREST RECEIVABLES

B ORI IR (R)

18 EWER(E)

NR-ZZB-BE+-_A=+—H &88FA
EERERMEFRTFAAR—EHEBAGZ
ETOECEBE T —R2BIYE =B
BA UAEXRR—HHBATERER
BB EER o % E WX ™M (E238,880,00078
JC - Th3E IR T AR & B LA A88,923,00078 T
REKEREER BEERBRER-Z
——F+-A=1+—HZFH -

19 BRFIE

As at 31 December
Rt+t=A=+—8

Interest receivables JE R 2
Less: o

Provision for impairment assessment of
interest receivables

- Stage —E R
- Stage 2 —E[BER
- Stage 3 — B =PEER
Interest receivables, net of provision R B 12 B R W R B,

The Group's interest receivables, which arise from the money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in
Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Except for interest receivables of HK$12,000 (2020: HK$15,000), which
are unsecured and are repayable with fixed terms agreed with the
customers, all interest receivables are secured by collaterals provided
by customers and are repayable with fixed terms agreed with the
customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk at each of the
reporting dates is the carrying amount of the interest receivables
mentioned above.

FE U A B B BB RT L B

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FExT FABT
5,646 7,284

(10) (17)

(25) (36)

(57) (88)

(92) (147)

5,554 7,143

REEEREBRENERBERRIA
B 510 B RS T A A A BB IR B LU T
SHE -

% A%012,0008 T (ZE=Z4F : 150008
T ) B K IR P 2B 7 B R 5 0 A B E BB
R N{E R R EUFI B o1 - P FEUF B A
EPRHMNEKERERR  WERBERP
HE R E EHIBR AEE - NS BHEIAT
HRH & AEERR & AT ERF &
BREE
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19 INTEREST RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19

As at 31 December 2021, interest receivable of HK$3,275,000 (2020:
HKS$5,010,000) were past due but not credit-impaired. As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, all overdue interest receivables were
interest derived from secured property mortgage loans. These were
related to a number of third-party customers and that the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that these overdue interest
receivables and the respective loans receivable were fully secured by
the collateral. Accordingly, these balances are still considered to be
fully recoverable.

The ageing analysis of these past due but not impaired interest
receivables is as follows:

FE W RIS (%)

R-TB-—F+=-A=+—08 " EKHNE
3,275,000 75 (Z &2 ZF4F : 5010,000/
T)EBBENKEEREBE RZT=Z—
FR-E_ZBF+-_A=1+—H 23
BEEKA S ARACEITMERBER
RFE - ZENBHSZEZRBUE=-FTEF
BB ARREERAZSAHEKFE
MBEEREFRHERREZEER - B
I ZERBENWE AT 2HKE -

ZED BB RREZ EUKF B HERE D
MranT

As at 31 December

0-30 days 0£30H
31-90 days 31290H
Over 90 days @O0 H

Further analyses on credit quality of interest receivables are set out in
Note 3.1(b).
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Wn+=A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
1,400 1,684
914 1,870
9261 1,456
3,275 5,010

R BEEE ZMNE— PO WERNK
$3.1(b) ©
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INTEREST RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Movements on the Group's impairment on interest receivables are as

follows:

As at 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—%—H—H
New loans originated EER

Loans recovered or repaid during the year R KESHERHER
Provisions transferred to repossessed assets % 2 A& Ui o] B & R B

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss  EH%E 12[A AEHEEER
(Stage 1) (E—FER)
Transfer to lifetime expected creditloss BB Z2HEHEEEE
not credit impaired (Stage 2) (RMEERE) (BERER)
Transfer to lifetime expected creditloss BB E 2 HEHREEEHE
credit impaired (Stage 3) (BEERE)(Z=RE&)
Total transfer between stages ERBREY & Eﬁ'
Impact on year end expected credit loss of & 4% B ER 75 Al b
exposures transferred between stages ”TE*?E,H&%AEST‘E inf-Z4
during the year
Movements due to changes in creditrisk =&

BREEAHNE

At at 31 December 2021 R-BE--£+-A=+—-H

B ORI IR (R)

19 BWFE (&)

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E--F+-A=1+-HLEE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-ER F-ER F=ER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TEx THR TER
17 36 88 141
4 18 - 22
(3) (30) (3) (36)
= = (19 (19)
1 (1) - -
1 (1) - -
(1 = = (1
(8) 2 9) (15)
10 25 57 92
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19 INTEREST RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19 BWRIE(E)

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T_TF+_R=1—-BItFE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

F—IHE SRR F=RER st

HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

T THT T THT

As at 1 January 2020 RZE-TE—-H—H 41 8 74 123

Loans recovered or repaid during the year  FREWEHEENER 12) ) (17) (30)

Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss  EH%E 12{A AEHEEER

(Stage 1) (E—F&R) = - - -
Transfer to lifetime expected creditloss ~ EHZE2HEHEEES

not credit impaired (Stage 2) (REERE)(ZRE&) 2) 2 = =
Transfer to lifetime expected creditloss BB ZE2HBHEEES

credit impaired (Stage 3) (BEERE)(Z=RE&) 0 (4) 5 =

Total transfer between stages BB NES Eﬁ' (3) ) 5 -

Impact on year end expected credit loss of ilﬂy\ & RS
exposures transferred between stages HEREHES Eﬁ?ﬁ ifez

during the year - 34 26 60
Movements due to changes in creditrisk ~ ZE R EE 5| R E (9) 3) - (12)
At at 31 December 2020 WR-E-EF+-H=+—-H 17 36 88 141

In general, interest receivables are considered as default when —MmE - EUCH S8 EAEEBOOKRE - fE
they are overdue by over 90 days. As at 31 December 2021, interest WF B WRABEN - RZTE=Z—F+=A
receivables of HK$1,225,000 (2020: HK$2,440,000) was default under =+—B - BKRFIE1,2250008 T (=F
lifetime ECL and a provision of HK$57,000 (2020: HK$88,000) was ZTE 12,440 OOO/%E)F\E,H\E%EEWDAJEE
provided. BTEEL - WEFES7,0008T(ZFT =

TAE 1 88,0008 7T ) B ©
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INTEREST RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

For loans that are not credit-impaired without significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition “Stage 1", ECL is measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default
events possible within the next 12 months. If a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition is identified (“Stage 2") but not
yet deemed to be credit impaired, ECL is measured based on lifetime
ECL. In general, when loans receivable or its related installments are
overdue by 30 days, there are significant increase in credit risk. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, total provision of HK$18,000
(2020: a charge of HK$4,000) under Stage 1 and Stage 2 was released
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income based on
assessment from ECL model.

All the interest receivables as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the maturity date, are current.

REPOSSESSED ASSETS

The nature and carrying amount of these assets held as at 31
December are summarised as follows:

19

20

B ORI IR (R)

FE W RIS (88)

HRIEEERELRBVRBERAREER
SR ERIN([E—TRENER &
HEEEBRSERARIME AR RERE
MENEHIIBRNEHBEHEESENL
BIFTE - ME VIR EREEFIEERR
BEEM((FE_RBEDETRREREREE
BE - AEEEEEEE2HEREES
BitE - —MmE @ WEKRERKEIEH
S EN B EZ0K - EEER AR N -
BE-_T-_ZTHE+-_A=+—BHILt&EE
RIETEREEBBREANT G F—RKER
K 58 — P& ER 4 O] MY 48 34851 8,00078 T (=&
ZEF : HIKR4,0005 ) ER A HHERA IR
mERPEEME o

RIBZHIA - NIEHRROMAE BRI E
HRBENER
RECEE

RT-A=t—HARHZFEENEE R
REESANT

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H

OB
—EEWE
R OBERHA R

Repossessed properties
- residential properties
Less: provision for impairment assessment

Repossessed assets, net of provision

Repossessed assets represent the underlying collateral assets in
which the Group has the rights to rent or sell in the recovery of the
credit impaired loans and interest receivable (e.g. through court
proceedings) but does not obtain ownership and control of the
underlying collateral assets. They are classified as debt investments
carried at amortised cost and are subject to the expected credit loss
model. The estimated market value of such repossessed assets as at
31 December 2021 was HK$18,800,000.

MERBRRAE R EE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
7,486 -
(193) -

7,293 -

WEEEEAEEEKE B EERERK
BRI F B (PIanE @A L) R S
k& v EFETBESHBKPEE
HFTBEERITHIENEREREE - 25
DEBIEBHEKATE 2 EBRE ¥R
BREFEEBEAER - ZFWEEER
B —F+-A=+—HZHFTES
18,800,000/ 7T °
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21 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21 FA{IEIE - e R EMpEWERIE

As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—8H

2021 2020
—=—— —E-FTF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Prepayments TEf IR 2,200 777
Deposits b 1,609 2,026
Tax reserve certificate @S 4,497 4407
Other receivables o fE W IR 15 15
8,321 7,315
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BN FRIE - 124 f H b fE W k18
Less: non-current portion B IEREE D (1,480) =
Current portion mENER 6,841 7,315
The Group's deposits and other receivables are denominated in Hong REBMIES REMEWRIE BT
Kong dollars. g o
All deposits and other receivables are neither past due nor impaired. B A 24 I H b fE Ui 5k T8 35 BT 4 360 HY I 4
E o
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22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSIT

(a) Cash at bank and on hand

B ORI IR (R)

22 RERBEEEYNEEFER

(a) RITRFHERE

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERE

The carrying amounts of the Group's cash at bank and on hand
are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars BIT
Renminbi AR

(b) Pledged deposit

Pledged deposit held at bank EHEMRRITIER

As at 31 December 2021, HK$18,962,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$7,434,000) pledged deposit held at a bank was used to
secure a bank loan facility (Note 25). The Group's pledged
deposit is denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
82,330 132,835

AEBRITRFRARSHREELZA
TEEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
82,300 132,808

30 27

82,330 132,835

(b) BIFEFR

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
18,962 7,434

R-E-_—F+-_A=+—H8" B
HERTTFA18,962,0008 L( —E - F
F+_-HA=1+—H 74340005 7T) B
ESRITERME 2 BR(FE25) ° &
EEEERF RSB ITEE ©
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23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS

All deferred income tax assets of the Group are expected to be
recovered after more than 12 months.

The movement in deferred income tax assets during the year, without
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same
tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

At 1 January 2020
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

RZE-FTF—-H—H
RAFHR A EERETA/ (305)

At 31 December 2020 R=2-FF+-A=t1—H

At 1 January 2021 5= A

Charged to the consolidated statement of REBHRE SRR
comprehensive income

At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—%+-A=1+—H
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary

differences to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of HK$226,000 (2020: HK$237,000) in respect of
losses amounting to HK$1,369,000 (2020: HK$1,435,000) that can be
carried forward indefinitely against future taxable income.

148

23 EENEBHEE

BEHMAKERAEENSHEERNER
T EARYKE -

BEERSHEENFRNER (LR R
Al — B i Rl ARE R AR ASRRIE SR A T

Provisions
for collective
impairment of

Accelerated
tax

depreciation loans receivable Total
ERER
MEHERE HAEEERSE #s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT
216 645 861
30 (215) (185)
246 430 676
246 430 676
(37) (19) (56)
209 1n 620

78 FJ REZE B F 1R BRI A = 3R B RA
TREE - IR R B E B R R T A
BREE -

M=F=—F+=A=+—-0 448
7 4% BT 4 PR HP 4 8 30 A 4 88 R SR B AR
B A E 1813690008 T (ZF=F
F 11,435,000 70 ) RBIE LGB EE
226,000/ T (ZZE = F 4 : 237,000/87T) °
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B ORI IR (R)

24 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 EFERARAEMENRIE
As at 31 December
Rt+t=B=+—8

2021 2020

—B-—fF —ETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Accruals JEETEH 2,693 2,485
Other payables E A pE T SRIE 742 792
Total st 3,435 3,277

Accruals and other payables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. FEETE A M E b IS TTEHE -
25 BANK LOANS 25 RITERX

As at 31 December 2021, secured bank loans of HK$35,900,000 (2020: R-ZE-_—F+_A=+—H AEH
HK$48,700,000), were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, repayable R 17 B 5£35,900,0008 T ( =T — T4 ¢
in one year and bore interest rate of 4.26% (2020: 4.36%) per annum. 48,700,000 7T ) A TTLEHE ~ AR —F
The bank loans were obtained from an independent third party bank NEENKBRERKRL4260( T T F
and were secured by (i) a floating charge on certain loans receivable 436%)FT 8 c ZRITERIMBILE=
of a subsidiary of the Company with carrying value of HK$94,751,000 FIRITES - WA TSIAEB EIEA « ()&
(2020: HK$115,699,000); (ii) a floating charge on certain bank A — R E A 7 BRE 8 /294,751,000
accounts of a subsidiary of the Company with carrying value of TT(ZZFEZFF : 11569900087 ) &
HK$18,962,000 (2020: HK$7,434,000); and (i) a corporate guarantee TFRKEFOZEBHE ; (VA7 —EH
from the Company. BRRREEA18962,0008 T(—ZE-F

F 17,434,000/ 70) A TERITIRE 2811
500 R(iANRD AR A BIER -
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26 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash generated from operations

150

Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Loan interest income (Note 6)

Bank interest income (Note 6)

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment (Note 7)

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
(Note 7)

Interest expenses

Reversal of impairment losses — net
(Note 8)

Changes in working capital:

Loans receivable

Repossessed assets

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Accruals and other payables

Cash (used in)/generated from operations

26 REREBEHR

(a)

Br R 1556 508
MTHSIEELFAE
E A B R (FizEe)
RITH B M (FizEe)
M - BREMERETE
GEX)
ERAEEETE (HiE7)

M EFX
B ElRERE — FR (K FEs)

FE W E
AR o &
BNRER HER
Ho Aty FE YR IR
FERT B R K E A BN 50R

reEB(mm),/ MELERS

re

EBMELERS

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-HA=1+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
62,908 76,590
(85,981) (103,277)

(4) (36)

268 424

3,666 4,026

355 5,092

(280) (1,523)
(31,796) 203,386
(7,486) —
(1,006) (1,220)

158 (2,054)
(59,198) 181,408




26 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

BREREEEEARLT 2021 F3f

26 REREEHR(A)
(b) BEEBIEERBENHIR

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

act

ivities

Asat 1 January 2020

Changes from financing cash flows:

Tot

Proceeds from bank and other borrowings

Repayment of bank and other borrowings
Dividend paid
Lease payment

al change from financing cash flows

Other changes:

Tot

Dividend declared
Interest on lease liabilities

al other changes

As at 31 December 2020

Asat 1 January 2021

Changes from financing cash flows:

Tot

Proceeds from bank loans
Repayment of bank loans
Dividend paid

Lease payment

al change from financing cash flows

Other changes:

Tot

Dividend declared
New leases
Interest on lease liabilities

al other changes

As at 31 December 2021

Note:

(0]

e =

REBSRER
ﬁﬁ&ﬁ@fm
Fra3A
EEFITREBER
Eff8
REMT

BEREREZDAR

/)EHX/L;
HERENE

221

WZE-TF+-f
E=

H

R-FT-_—%-A-H

e
BEBITER
BEARRE
RENF

HARARERDEE

21128
RERA
EE
REAEA
H8DEE

WZEZ—%+_7
S

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI IR M

nl E

Bank loans /
Bank and other Total liabilities
borrowings Dividend Lease  from financing
Note (i) LEVEL [ liabilities activities
BaER/ o
BITREMER REEE
BfE (i) ENRE HERE BRAR
HKS'000 HKS000 HK000 HKS000
TAT TAT TER TAT
176,891 = 5503 182,394
48,700 = = 48,700
(176,891) - - (176,891)
- (9,200) - (9,200)
= = (4,281) (4,281)
(128,191) (9,200) (4,281) (141,672)
- 9,200 - 9,200
= = 215 215
- 9,200 215 9415
48,700 = 1,437 50,137
48,700 - 1,437 50,137
122,900 - - 122,900
(135,700) - - (135,700)
- (38,400) - (38,400)
- - (3,889) (3,889)
(12,800) (38,400) (3,889) (55,089)
- 38,400 - 38,400
- - 10,219 10,219
- - 280 280
- 38,400 10,499 48,899
35,900 - 8,047 43,947
#

For the year ended 31 December 2021, interest paid is classified as ()
operating cash flows and recorded in cash used in operating activities
of approximately HK$77,000 (2020: generated from operating activities
of approximately HK$513,000) for the year ended 31 December 2021,

respectively.

HEZ
BRIEERER
BIEFREEE

T_—F+-A=1+—HILFE  BERFEHE
WEHE=ZZTZ
SEEFTAR SR RA77,0008 (==

—Ft=A=+—

TF R BE A 49513,000/8 L) ©
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27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 RAE
Authorised share capital EERAK
Nominal Equivalent
Number of value of nominal
ordinary ordinary value of
shares shares ordinary shares
EEREA EEREE SEREEAEE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 31 December 2020, 1 January 2021 and RZZE-FTF+-A=1+—H"
31 December 2021 “Z2-—%—-F-Bk
“E--f+-R=+-H 10,000,000,000 0.01 100,000,000
L
Issued share capital ERTRAE
Number of
issued shares Amount
ERTRAHE &8
HK$
BT
At 31 December 2020, 1 January 2021 and RZE-_EF+-_A=+—H"
31 December 2021 —Z—%-A-BRk
“EB_-FtZRA=1—H 400,000,000 4,000,000
28 RESERVES 28 f#iE
The amount of the Group's reserve and the movements therein AEEAFERBEFENRESER
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated FHHN P BEHRRESQLENE HEREE
statement of changes in equity on page 82 of the financial o
statements.
The Group capital reserve represents the excess of the fair value of REE 2 BN FBEERBAR ARG LW
the net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant AIEBEAARRWEZMBRAREEFER
to the reorganisation prior to the Listing of the Company’s share, FEBBAARBETEARR KRG Z
over the nominal value of the Company’s share issued in exchange [EIRERC
thereof.
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by Blossom Spring (incorporated in BVI),
which is the ultimate holding company of the Group and owns 75%
of the Company’s shares. The remaining 25% of the shares are widely
held. The ultimate controlling party is Ms. Jin Xiaogin.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
this consolidated financial statement, the following is a summary of
the significant transactions carried out between the Group and its
related parties in the ordinary course of business during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

B ORI IR (R)

29 BBERS

NEE HBlossom Spring(RREBR LS
sEA AR AL ) 2 % > Blossom Spring & AN &
E&EERATR - WHEAARRF75%8 1%
o BeR25s%RMH AR Z H#HE - &RIE
HlHAEESLL -

BRAGHTBHREREMBOTBEENR

K AERR AN T SO it AN 55 [ B EL B E
REBEEZZT - FR-_ZT-_TF+=A
=+ BHIEFEERRESBREPETH
BARS
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 29 BHMAERS (&)
(a) Key management compensation (a) TEEE A S HEH
The remuneration of executive Directors of the Company and RABHITEERAEMTITEEIEAS
other members of key management is shown below: ZEMITRTR

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-—A=+—HLHFE
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#&x THT
Salaries, benefits and other remuneration ¥4 - @85 R EALEN S 4,133 4,049
Discretionary bonus BIBIEAL 272 268
Pension costs RIR S B AR 81 90
4,486 4,407

(b) Remuneration paid to a related party (b) XA+ FRAEE S = M

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_HA=1+—HLFE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#ET FHEIT

Salaries and pension costs paid to the M—BARARES BB
spouse of a director of the Company iz $e RRIR&R A 252 252
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30 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 30 AQTIBERRER GBS

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
Statement of Financial Position of the Company AN B B IS AR R 3R
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—H
2021 2020
=F=—F —ECE
Notes HK$'00_0 HK%'O(KJ
M FHET FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB R RIMILE 444,795 444,795
Amount due from subsidiaries FEU B A B I8 147,840 149,026
Total non-current assets FREBEELE 592,635 593,821
Current assets REBEE
Prepayment and other receivables TE A FRIE B B Ah FE W R IE 4,650 4,646
Cash and cash equivalents BENBESZEEY 143 145
Total current asset REBEEHAE 4,793 4,791
Total assets EEHAE 597,428 598,612
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of  ZAQFEA AEEES
the Company
Share capital A% \ 4,000 4,000
Other reserves Hib G (a) 566,591 566,591
Retained earnings REBEF @) 2,753 3,937
Total equity XA 573,344 574,528
LIABILITIES 8E&
Non-current liability FRBAE
Amount due to subsidiaries FERTBT B A R ZkIE 19,554 19,554
Total non-current liability kRBEEEE 19,554 19,554
Current liabilities REEE
Tax payable FEIRIIR 4,522 4,522
Accruals EETE A 8 8
Total current liabilities REBEEHEE 4,530 4,530
Total liabilities EEHE 24,084 24,084
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEREE 597,428 598,612

ARRMHBERAREEEEN _T——

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by
the Board of Directors on 29 March 2022 and was signed on its behalf. —AZ+NBAMEREIBRUATATRS

RE

Ms. Wang YaoE ¥ 7+
Director®& &

Ms. Yip Lee Ying EX B & +
Director &
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30 AARUBRARREEFLE (F)

30 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Statement of Financial Position of the Company (Continued) KRB HBARR K (E)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company Midt@ ARFREEES
Share Capital Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
B4 EE ERfGkE REBF A%
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
THL THT THT THT
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-Z-_Z5-F—Hz&H 122,176 444,415 5193 571,784
Total comprehensive income FRGEARALE
for the year - - 7,944 7,944
Transactions with owners BREANRS
Dividend paid relating to 2019 BE-_Z-NFEMRE - - (9,200) (9,200)
Total transactions with owners, HEEANZZAE
recognised directly in equity (EEREERR) = = (9,200) (9,200)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-Z-Zf
TZR=t—-Bz&&H 122,176 444415 3,937 570,528
Representing EATIRE
Reserves & 122,176 406,015 3,937 532,128
Proposed final dividend EEAERS = 25,600 = 25,600
Proposed special dividend BaRAIRE = 12,800 = 12,800
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-Z-Zf
TZRA=+-Hz&H 122,176 444415 3,937 570,528
Balance at 1 January 2021 R-B--F—-R-H2&H 122,176 444,415 3,937 570,528
Total comprehensive income FRGARALE
for the year - - 37,216 37,216
Transactions with owners HEFEANRS
Dividend paid relating to 2020 BE-_Z-_ZFEARE - - (38,400) (38,400)
Total transactions with owners, HEREEANZZAE
recognised directly in equity (EERERRR) - - (38,400) (38,400)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R-Z--%
TZR=t—-Bz&&H 122,176 444,415 2,753 569,344
Representing HATIEE
Reserves A 122,176 423,215 2,753 548,144
Proposed final dividend EaAHRE - 21,200 = 21,200
Balance at 31 December 2021 R-B-—&
TZRA=t+-Bz&t 122,176 444,415 2,753 569,344
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Statement of Financial Position of the Company (Continued)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company (Continued)

The Company’s capital reserve represents the excess of the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to the
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s share, over the nominal
value of the Company’s share issued in exchange therefor.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, a company may make

distributions to its shareholders out of the capital reserves in certain
circumstances.

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive of
the Company is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2021:

B ORI IR (R)

30 AARMBMRAKRKRFERE ()

AR B IR R (])

Mizt@ AAREHEZLE(E)

HEAEENARAREABEENAR AR
o LRl - ARRRIBEARENERFN
BEFENRTEBH AR R RRE
BARMBTORMDEEBE -

REBFEHSQAE  ARAARETHERT
BEARERELRELRDIR

31 EEEANRAE

(a)

EERAHN M
RARIBREZRAEIOME T
T e

BE-—F-——F1t=-A=1—H
LEFE -

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking

FRESRFLTINELRXHREEARBHC HARUM S

Discretionary  Pension Other
Fees Salary  bonuses costs  benefits Total
e e MBRA BAERE  HitEH it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR TR THRT TR THRT TR
Executive Directors YrEs

Ms. Wang Yao T#LT 600 - - 18 - 618
Ms. Jin Yiaogin $BERT 600 - - 9 = 609
Ms. Yip Lee Ying ERut - 1347 170 18 - 1,535
1,200 1,347 170 45 - 2,762

Independent non-executive Directors BukinES
Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick D& i 240 - - - - 240
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REVET 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis B 240 - - - - 20
720 - - - - 720
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31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

During the year, no director has waived any emoluments (2020:
Nil).

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2020:

31 EEEA KNS (E)

(a) EERAHNFMHE)

FAN - BMESERECNH(=ZF
TEF ) o
HBE—_ZT_FF+_F=+—H
WFEE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director

iR

Fees

whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking
R =R ARHREEARBND 5
Discretionary Pension
bonuses costs
MiETA '
HKY000
Thr

benefits
1A
HK$'000

Salary

Executive Directors HES
Ms. Wang Yao ES: 3oy 600 - - 18 - 618
Ms. Jin Yiaogin SBERT 600 - - 18 - 618
Mr. Ng Yiu Lun (i) il et - 640 - 12 - 652
Ms. Yip Lee Ying (i) EARLL) = 449 168 6 - 623
1,200 1,089 168 54 - 251
Independent non-executive Directors BukinES
Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick b4 3 0 - - - - 40
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXET A0 - - - - 40
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis ERfRLE ) - - - - 40
720 - - - - 720
Note: Bt
(i) Mr.Ng Yiu Lun resigned as an executive director with effect from 28 August () MRREEEFENTES 822 =%

2020. Salaries and pension costs of approximately HK$326,000 paid to him
in relation to his employment with the Group from 28 August 2020 to 31
December 2020 had not been included in the above table.

(i) Ms. Yip Lee Ying has been appointed as an executive director with
effect from 28 August 2020. Salaries and pension costs of approximately
HK$910,000 paid to her in relation to her employment with the Group from
1 January 2020 to 27 August 2020 had not been included in the above

table.
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FNAZ+TN\BRER - FER=_FT=
ZENA-_+NBE-_ZE-_ZH+_H4
=+ AZERAEEMREIANTE
TR AR & Ak 2K 49326,00078 7T i R &5H A b
2% °
EHBLULTOEZTAHTES B
ZEFENAZTNBRER - FERZF
—EE-A-RE-_ZE-_FTFN\A=-_++
BZEARNEEMRE S FHOHS KRR
SR AN49910,00078 T ARETA LR ©
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31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits or termination benefits during the year (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no consideration was
provided to or receivable by third parties for making available
director’s services (2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year (2020: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 29, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group'’s business
to which the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2020: Nil).

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

B ORI IR (R)

31 EEENRE A= ()

EERKEARBER

I 8 T B0 AN JE R 3 & W ER
EARARBENMBEREN(ZE =%
FE) e

REZRBEEE=FRHENNK
B

HE-_T-—Ff_A=+—AIt#F
& wmEEERBRE =R
RIE - E=HRERRE(CF

T

BERUES - SEFEAER
REZESEERBECERS
ZHANER - EERREAM
BB AR B RSN F A B ] O £
NEE  ZEHEAERMZEES
ERECERDITANER - £E
AREMZ G (ZE_TF : &) o

EERRS ZHHEHNZE
RiER

BRPMRE29PT BRI - BEARFERH
REREAERE  ARBLERT L
MEREEXEEEEARRESH
BEEA#Z (BRERIMEE)NE
AR5 RHREH(ZT_F4F:
&) o
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AFMBHRE

RESULTS ¥E

Revenue WA 85,981 103,277 121,737 124,277 103,479

Profit and total comprehensive B A BT HF 5 &
income for the year attributable 434 WA 4458
to owners 52,520 64,165 62,500 68,413 63,006

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

Total assets EESE 905,458 898,924 995,177 1,105,430 799,045
Total liabilities RiERE 49,997 57,583 208,801 359,954 100,730
Total equity EmiAE 855,461 841,341 786,376 745,476 698,315
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